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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may bhe more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited
BARBEMEEE (ER) BRAF

100%
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Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited Cayman lIslands Investment holding
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Kong Shum Property Management Group Limited British Virgin Islands Investment nolding
BARBEMFEREEERA RBRIHS REZER
Kong Shum Union Property Management Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of property management services
BARBEMEEEBRA BB R EERARG
Q & V Security Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of security services
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K-King Cleaning Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services by subcontracting
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s principal
activity was provision of property management services.

During the year under review, the Group continued its
development efforts to stay competitive in the market. Under
our property management portfolio, we have been awarded
34 management contracts in residential and commercial
projects including Healthy Gardens with 1,104 units, Kwai
Fong Terrace with 665 units, Hoi Tak Gardens with 348 units
and Prosper Commercial Building with 214 units.

During the year under review, we witnessed a gradual and
orderly shift in the business direction of the Group. The Group
has been providing property management services in Hong
Kong since its establishment in 1984. Riding on the rapid
E-Commerce development, the Group has also started to
explore opportunities in the E-Commerce sector actively. This
allows the Group to provide value-added services to its
customers and seek new revenue streams.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$339.7 million (2014: approximately
325.0 million), representing an increase of 4.5% as compared
with last year. Consolidated gross profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately HK$70.4
million (2014: approximately 66.2 million), representing an
increase of approximately 6.4% as compared with last year.
The percentage on profit attributable to owners was slightly
decreased by approximately 1.1% as compared with last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2015
was HK$0.012 (2014: HK$0.014).

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and operation in the year
2014/2015 with shareholders in the following section of
management discussion and analysis.

MILESTONE

Ever since the Group has identified E-Commerce as the
strategic focus for its business transformation, a Letter of
Intent (“LOI”) for proposed investment and a Memorandum
of Understanding (“MoU*) for business cooperation have been
announced. The Company has recently entered into a
Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement with All Profit
Alliance Limited (“All Profit”) in jointly developing the mobile
application “Yes Master!”. The mobile application is a virtual
concierge providing all-rounded personal and household
services to users. The Group believes that the investment in
All Profit is in line with its objective to provide value-added
services to over 400 properties and around 90,000 households
under its management, and ultimately to every resident in
Hong Kong.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over housing stock production
and the speeding up of the issue of housing completion in
the near future is expected to solve the issue of heavy demand
on housing. It is envisaged that the property management
business will expand simultaneously.

In the near future, we will continue to expand our management
portfolio by capturing the continuing outsourcing activities
implemented by private residential owners, corporations and
government institutions.

Looking ahead, we will continue to explore new business
opportunities in order to broaden the revenue streams and
enhance the profitability of the Group. Seizing the opportunities
arising from the rapid E-Commerce development and taking
advantage of the on-going demand for property management
services in Hong Kong, the Group is confident in creating
more value for customers, shareholders and investors.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest
gratitude to the management and our staff for their significant
contributions. | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
all our shareholders and investors for their endless support.
With the solid business base and the effort of all our staff,
the Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Liu Dan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWE D

OVERVIEW

The Group is a property management services group principally
engaged in the provision of property management services in
Hong Kong primarily targeting residential properties. The
Group operates under the brand name of “Kong Shum” and
provides a range of management services including security,
repair and maintenance, cleaning, finance management,
administrative and legal support. Under an established
functional structure with various departments, the Group has
dedicated teams to carry out the aforementioned management
services. The Group also employs a team of security staff to
provide security services as part of the services provided under
property management contracts or under stand-alone security
services contracts. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group provided property security services for 28 properties
under stand-alone security services contracts. The operating
arm of the Group’s security services is mainly Q & V Security
Company Limited (“Q&V”). The Group hires its own security
staff to provide property security services. The Group also
employs registered technicians to provide basic repair and
maintenance services to its customers if required. In relation
to the cleaning services, the Group subcontracts substantially
all of its cleaning services to third-party contractors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 51 %5 1B R
Summary Financial Performance HBRABE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$’'000 Change
FERT TET )
Revenue &= 339,722 324,981 4.5%
Cost of services AR 745 B AR (269,280) (258,781) 4.1%
Gross Profit EAH 70,442 66,200 6.4%
Gross profit margin ERE 20.7% 20.4% n/a “TiE A
Other income net HE A FEE 349 279 25.1%
Administrative expenses T (44,122) (37,980) 16.2%
Other operating expenses HipZBERY (18,717) (19,775) -5.4%
Finance costs =@ (658) (1,105) -40.5%
Profit before tax BR 25 Al A 7,294 7,619 -4.3%
Income tax expense St X (2,320) (2,591) -10.5%
Profit attributable to owners of ZS2A F#EA A FE/ALER
the Company 4,974 5,028 -1.1%
Net profit margin AR 1.5% 1.5%  n/a TEH

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, all of the
Group’s revenue was derived from its operation in Hong Kong.
The Group derived revenue of approximately HK$20.7 million
and HK$20.1 million respectively from stand-alone security
services contracts for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2015 respectively, representing approximately 6.4% and 5.9%
of its total revenue. The following table sets out the Group’s
revenue by contract type for the years ended 31 March 2014
and 2015:

BEEEWR DT

Lg

H E2014F 201538318 IEF & A&
EMBKRRIREERENEE - SHE
20144 M2015%F3A31H IEFE - A&
REBIYREREEHLNKRED BN A
2,0708 /8 T NK2,0108 8L AEEKRA
BERRERBEEND AN EHEBRKED
6.4%K%59% c TRIEGHBEAHIEZE
20144 K2015%3A31B It FEAREB UK

Nooo
z

2015 2014

20154 20145
HK$ million percentage HK$ million percentage
BEBRT fEER2L BEET e

Property management services MEEEBERBEE L

contracts 319.6 94.1% 304.3 93.6%
Property security services contracts #I¥RZRIEE 4 20.1 5.9% 20.7 6.4%
339.7 100% 325.0 100%

The Group’s revenue improved by approximately 4.5% from
approximately HK$325.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2014 to approximately HK$339.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2015. The increase was primarily attributable to
the growth of revenue generated from property management
services contracts, increasing by approximately 5.0% to
approximately HK$319.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2015. The increase in revenue was mainly driven by the
number of management service contracts increased. During
the year, the number of management service contracts
obtained by the Group had been increased by 8 from 411
during the year ended 31 March 2014 to 419 for the year
ended 31 March 2015. Revenue generated from security
services contracts recorded a decrease of approximately 2.9%
to approximately HK$20.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2015.

AEBHWZHEE2014F3A31H IHF
[ #93.25018 B 7T L A £94.5% = & Z=2015
F3A318 It FE43.397(E 8 T - 5% N
TEHRDEETERBEAVELENKE
# K B ZE2015F3A318 It FE#MNL
5.0%EH31BEE T - WE LA FER
EEREELE IS - F A ANEBE
SHEERBAELNBEE2014F3A31H
IEFE A1 18 s =& £2015%3A
318 IEFE /41917 - B =2015F3 A31H
LEFE RERBEHEENWER L
29%E#2,01088 7T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

REVENUE (continued)

The following graph sets out the revenue for the years ended
31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015.

Wegs
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Revenue
HK$ million
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COST OF SERVICES

The total cost of services amounted to approximately HK$258.8
million and HK$269.3 million for the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2015 respectively, representing approximately
79.6% and 79.3% respectively of the Group’s revenue. The
increase of the cost of services during the year of approximately
4.1% was mainly due to the increase on the average salaries
of the Group’s front-line staff.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
6.4% from approximately HK$66.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2014 to approximately HK$70.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The gross profit margin was
approximately 20.4% and 20.7% for years ended 31 March
2014 and 2015 respectively. The Group negotiated and
adjusted the service fees in order to reflect the increase in
costs and to maintain a growth on the gross profit margin.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D
GROSS PROFIT (continued) ER(E)
The following graph sets out the gross profit for the years T B &% & £20134F 20144 K& 201543
ended 31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015. H31BIEFEHEF -
Gross profit  EF
HK$ million BE&HIT
80
s 66.2 Y
- 52.3 . —
50 —
40
30
20
10
O T T 1
2013 2014 2015

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE AREEE AEAGRT
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners was slightly decreased by AR FIHEHE AL &GN HE £201453 A
approximately 1.1% from approximately HK$5.03 million for 31H IESFE {50388 T RS B4 1.1% = &L
the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$4.97 ZE20155%3A31H IEFEH4978ETT M
million for the year ended 31 March 2015, and the net profit — #5H & 4 #5 T & - & 220144 K2015%F3
margin remain unchange with approximately 1.5% percentage A31BIEFEHLKIR1.5% °

for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015 respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1T BB 32

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 B ZE2015F3A31H IEFE  AEEMNITH
March 2015 were approximately HK$44.1 million (2014: B & 494,410 & (20144 : 493,800
approximately HK$38.0 million), representing an increase of &8 7T)  #20145F [F] #3180 4916.2% ° %
approximately 16.2% compared to the corresponding period EBMNEEHRFAELANEIKRN(BEE
in 2014. This was mainly attributable to the increase in staff ~LTHr& ~{EAL - EFFHM RS ) B MPTEL -
cost including staff salaries, bonus, Directors’ emoluments

and rentals incurred during the year.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Hitn &M%

The Group’s other operating expenses for the year ended 31 & E£2015F3A31H It FE > NEE M H
March 2015 were approximately HK$18.7 million (2014: fifl & & B X & #J1,8708 /& 7T (2014F -
approximately HK$19.8 million), representing a decrease of #J1,980% & 7T )+ #2014 [ #1 & 4> &9
approximately 5.4% compared to the corresponding period 5.4% - Z¥ktBIIEE2HNFAELEZ
in 2014. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in FIx - IBREIFTEME -

Listing expenses, donation and depreciation incurred during

the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENwmR D
LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND RBES MBERRENEE
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
For the year ended/as at
31 March
W/ BZE3A3MALEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial position B AR R
Current assets MBEE 86,735 104,166
Current liabilities mENEE 61,145 62,223
Net current assets ﬁ@]iﬁ%%@ 25,590 41,943
Total assets BEE 100,563 115,994
Bank borrowings and obligations under fETﬂﬁE&mﬂéTﬂ =R IE
finance lease 17,145 19,890
Bank balances and cash IRITHESBRRIRE 34,576 35,900
Total equity MR 39,287 53,567
Key ratios FEHER
Return on equity (1) L ZNEEEAQY) 10.7% 13.6%
Return on assets (2) BERmE(2) 4.6% 4.5%
Current ratio (3) MBNELZE(3) 1.42 f&times 1.67 fStimes
Gearing ratio (4) BEABREKEEA) 43.6% 37.1%
Net Debt to equity ratio (5) FREHERLEE®G) 0% 0%
Debtors turnover day (6) FE U BR ZUE 82 B 21(6) 48.6 Hdays 51.6 Hdays
Creditors turnover day (7) FETBR BB B 20(7) 26.2 Hdays 27.1 Hdays
Notes: KteE -

1. Return on equity is calculated as the profit for the year divided by 1.

average total equity.

2. Return on assets is calculated as the profit for the year divided by 2.

average total assets.

eNEEE

BEDHRETY

RERRMR AT Rt E -

BENBENBRIAFOREESH

3. Current ratio is calculated as the current assets divided by current 3.  mEILLEDRRBEER AR B EFE -
liabilities.

4.  Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For 4. BEEBGRLXDREGBERAGERAE -R
the avoidance of doubt, total debt represents bank borrowing and finance SERME REEERTEERBERERE-
lease obligation.

5. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and 5.  FEEHERLLENIRESBERR® MIRITE
bank balances and divided by total equity. For the avoidance of doubt, MBS E AR LR RBEERR
total debt represents bank borrowing and finance lease obligation. TEERBERERE-

6.  Debtors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade receivables divided 6.  FEWERFNEE E%ﬁ(ﬂ?ﬁz?iﬁ%%ﬁuﬁlﬁﬁ KR DA
by revenue times number of days in the period. IR ATELAERA B 85T E

7.  Creditors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade payables divided 7.  EfTERR ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ&?ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ B A

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

by cost of services times number of days in the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31
March 2015 with bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$34.6 million (2014: approximately HK$35.9 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank borrowings and
obligations under finance lease of approximately HK$17.1
million (2014: approximately HK$19.9 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$25.6 million (2014: approximately
HK$41.9 million). The Group’s operations are financed
principally by revenue generated from its business operations,
available cash and bank balances and bank borrowings.

RETURN ON EQUITY

The return on equity dropped from approximately 13.6% for
the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately 10.7% for
the year ended 31 March 2015, mainly due to the increase
on average total equity after the placing of shares upon listing
which enlarged the Company’s equity for the last reporting
period.

RETURN ON ASSETS

The return on assets was slightly increased from approximately
4.5% for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
4.6% for the year ended 31 March 2015.

CURRENT RATIO

The Group’s current ratio dropped from approximately 1.67
times as at 31 March 2014 to approximately 1.42 times as
at 31 March 2015 mainly due to the payment of HK$20
million final dividend during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWE D

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total debt (i.e. bank
borrowing and finance lease obligation) divided by total equity,
as at 31 March 2015 is approximately 43.6% (2014:
approximately 37.1%). The total bank borrowings decreased
from approximately HK$19.3 million as at 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$16.7 million as at 31 March 2015 as the
Group settled the bank loan during the reporting period. On
the other hand, the Group’s total equity decreased significantly
during the year ended 31 March 2015 due to the final
dividend payment in the amount of HK$20 million.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio was 0% as at 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 which indicates that the Group’s
has sufficient cash and bank balances for debts repayment.

DEBTORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The debtors’ turnover day decreased from approximately 51.6
days for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
48.6 days for the year ended 31 March 2015 under the
monitor of the recoverability on trade debtors.

CREDITORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The creditors’ turnover day was slightly decreased from
approximately 27.1 days for the year ended 31 March 2014
to approximately 26.2 days for the year ended 31 March
2015. The decrease was due to the early settlement to some
creditors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW
Outlook

The number of property in Hong Kong market is increasing.
Public opinion voices concern over the housing stock
production and the speeding up of the housing completion
in the near future is expected to solve the heavy demand on
housing. It is envisaged that the property management
business will expand simultaneously. On the other hand, even
though strong competition and soaring cost resulting from
minimum wage revision and inflation are unavoidable, the
Directors are confident that the Group is in an appropriate
stage to increase its market share after the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

Human resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 2,109
employees. The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31
March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$290.7 million.
To ensure that the Group is able to attract and retain staff
capable of attaining the best performance levels, remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis. In addition,
discretionary bonus is offered to eligible employees of the
Group by reference to the Group’s results and individual
performance.

Services contracts

Due to the well-established team and project planning, during
the year ended 31 March 2015, 11 facility management
service contracts for non-domestic property management
segment which include 6 shopping complexes, 4 educational
institutes and 1 empty bay were awarded to the Group. In
addition, 26 property management contracts and 1 stand-
alone security service contract were awarded to the Group
during the period under review. The success in securing the
contracts gives the Group confidence to expand the property
management portfolio continuously

As at 31 March 2015, there were in total 419 service contracts
(covering around 90,000 households) comprising 396 property
management service contracts, 12 stand-alone security service
contracts and 11 facility management service contracts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Contract renewal complying with procedural
requirements

A service contract which does not comply with the procedural
requirements for contract renewal as stipulated in section
20A of the Building Management Ordinance (Chapter 344 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) may be cancelled by the owners’
corporation. For the 419 contracts in force as at 31 March
2015, 13 service contracts are not in strict compliance with
the said contract renewal requirements, hence, termination
notice were served on clients involving in these contracts. All
of the remaining 406 valid contracts as at 31 March 2015
were in compliance with the said procedural requirements or
not applicable under the Building Management Ordinance.
The senior management adopts a tight control system to
monitor the full compliance of the procedural requirements.
All newly signed contracts during the year ended 31 March
2015 included the mandatory term requiring the client to
follow the said procedural requirements (if applicable).

Client accounts

As at 31 March 2015, the Group holds 52 client accounts
amounting to approximately HK$21.1 million (2014:
approximately HK$18.0 million) on trust for and on behalf of
clients. These client accounts are opened in the names of
the Group and the relevant property. The management fees
received from the tenants or owners of the properties were
deposited into these client accounts and the expenditure of
these clients were paid from these client accounts.

Performance bond

As at 31 March 2015, banks issued 13 bond certificates
amounting to approximately HK$18.2 million (2014:
approximately HK$16.9 million) on behalf of the Group to
clients as required in their service contracts.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: approximately HK$0.4 million).

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments
as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Contingent liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business operations were conducted in Hong
Kong. The transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the
Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no material impact
to the Group arising from the fluctuation in the foreign
exchange rates between the currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives arrangement and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals

On 21 June 2015, the Company, Capital Creation (BVI)
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“Capital Creation”), and All Profit Alliance Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“All Profit”), entered
into the Subscription and Shareholders’” Agreement dated 21
June 2015 (“Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement”),
pursuant to which All Profit has agreed to issue, and the
Company has agreed to subscribe for the 10 new All Profit
Shares to be subscribed by the Company under the
Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement (“Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$13 million. The
Subscription Shares will in aggregate represent 10% of the
issued share capital of All Profit as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Subscription Shares. Further details of the
Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement can be found on
the announcement dated 22 June 2015.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any major
investment, acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31
March 2015.

Charges over assets of the Group

As at 31 March 2015, certain bank deposits of approximately
HK$5.0 million (2014: HK$15.9 million) and the deposits
placed for life insurance policies of approximately HK$7.7
million (2014: HK$7.5 million) were pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Besides, the Group
had certain motor vehicles acquired under finance lease. The
carrying value of motor vehicles under finance lease amounted
to approximately HK$1.0 million and approximately HK$0.8
million as at 31 March 2014 and 2015 respectively.

The deposits placed for life insurance policies are denominated
in United States dollars, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Change of Controlling Shareholders, General Offer and
change of Directors

The Company and the Wiser Capital Management Limited
(“Offeror”) jointly announced on 27 November 2014, among
other things, that on 20 November 2014, the Offeror, Topgrow,
Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Offeror agreed to acquire, and Topgrow
agreed to sell the sale shares (the “Sale Shares”) which represent
75% of the existing entire issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the Share Purchase Agreement at the
consideration of HK$183,750,000 (equivalent to HK$0.6125 per
Sale Share). The Offeror was wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Dan. The
completion of the Share Purchase Agreement took place on 25
November 2014.

Upon the completion of the Share Purchase Agreement on
25 November 2014, the Offeror became the owner of 75%
of the existing entire issued share capital of the Company,
and accordingly, as at the date of announcement on 9 January
2015, the Offeror was required to make an unconditional
mandatory cash offer (the “Offer”) for all the issued Shares
(other than those already acquired by the Offeror and parties
acting in concert with it) pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”).
Kingston Securities Limited made the Offer for and on behalf
of the Offeror in accordance with Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers
Code.

Pursuant to Rule 2.1 and Rule 2.8 of the Takeovers Code,
an independent board committee, comprising all the Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kam Tak Yeung, Mr. Tso Ping
Cheong Brian, Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai, Mr. Tong Sze Chung,
Mr. So Chung Shing and Mr. Wong Tsz Ho, was formed to
advise the independent Shareholders as to whether the Offer
is fair and reasonable and as to the acceptance of the Offer.

The offer price (the “Offer Price”) of HK$0.6125 per offer
Share in respect of which the Offer is made was the same
as the price per Sale Share paid by the Offeror to Topgrow
under the Share Purchase Agreement. As the Offeror, Mr. Liu
Dan and parties acting in concert with any of them were
interested in 300,000,000 Shares as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of the composite offer and response
document jointly issued by the Offeror and the Company on
9 January 2015 (the “Composite Offer Document”),
100,000,000 Shares were subject to the Offer and the total
consideration of the Offer would be approximately
HK$61,250,000 based on the Offer Price.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Change of Controlling Shareholders, General Offer and
change of Directors (continued)

Before the Offer 7 Directors tendered their resignations to
the Board but each of them indicated in his resignation that
his resignation is subject to the Takeovers Code and shall not
take effect until the earliest possible date when such
resignations may be permitted to take effect under the
Takeovers Code. The remaining two Directors, namely Mr. Ho
Ying Choi and Mr. Shum Lok To, who have not tendered their
resignations will remain in the Board after completion of the
Offer. With effect from 21 January 2015, Mr. Liu Dan was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company.

Close of the Offer and the Level of Acceptance

The Board and the Offeror jointly announced that the Offer
made by Kingston Securities Limited on behalf of the Offeror
was closed at 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 2 February 2015.

As at 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 2 February 2015, being the
latest time and date for acceptance of the Offer as set out
in the Composite Offer Document, the Offeror has not received
any valid acceptances of the Shares under the Offer. The
Offer has not been revised or extended.

Major shareholders

Wiser Capital Management Limited is an investment holding
company and is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Liu
Dan. The principal activity is investment holding and the
principal assets are its equity interest in the Company. Mr.
Liu Dan is the sole shareholder and sole director of Wiser
Capital Management Limited.

Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in
the Prospectus for the period from 20 September 2013, being
the latest practicable date as defined in the Prospectus
(“LPD"), to 31 March 2015 (the “Review Period”) with the
Group’s actual business progress for the Review Period is set
out as follows:

BEEEWR DT

e R (E)
BRRRREH 2ERENARESLEH ()

ETENR7/REERNEESRLAR E
AR EFHPRAZERH AT IR
TRIFTRR  BEEE%Z S A IRIEWE
TR A AR &EFE 88 BH 2 Ai9 1
/%Eé Mo tp TR ESE  BMa]fERS 0 K &
SESEVERL SR HEENTKE
WIEBEEEZ - H2015F1821H 8-
Liu DanE A ER T AR A RHITES -

I

4} 4} R

T IE KBRS
EEeHILNTHEEM 2FEESHE
RARTRERELHAIREIHEL B R2015F
2A2B(2H—) T T4 EE L -

EA2015$2)%25(EHH—)T%LB%E(EDZ*
EHONHFEZEMNENNRERBRAB

Hﬂ) X HWEREZ N EETMRN DN

BRUER - BHWEREEFTSHES -

FERR

Wiser Capital Management Limited& & &

TR AT ALiu DankEBEm k2B
BE-HIZEBRAREER MErEEE
BIRA QBRI - Liu Danst 4 AWiser
Capital Management Limited )M — B3R K&
M—EF-

EBECRERXTEELR

201369 208 (BB ERFIEEN R
BEBRUTBHR(IREERITEE]))ZE
20153 A31 A ([EIEEHAM J) (EHAfE 2 1B
RERS XK B IZHEAEE R EES
EOEREBEEELRNODTET ¢

Annual Report 2014/15
2014/15%F 3§

2



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated
in the Prospectus

BREBAFL XK EE

R mpE(E)
EBEGREREREZ LR (H)

Actual business progress

BEREREE

Expansion of the property
management portfolio

ARNXEELAS

Hire additional professional as
maintenance surveyors and
building services engineers;
BEEZEZATEEREN
B R0 RS R TS TAZAD ;

Establish a new property
management team with one
property manager, one
executive manager and two
administrative staff;
RUFTEEREN - 21—
BYELE - —RITHEER
MBITHE L :

Prepare promotional materials;

mESEMH

Commence provision of
management services to six
new non-residential properties
G RNIRFT I E TR TRH
BIRIRT

During the period, one Property and Facility Management
Division Surveyor was hired and some engineers will join
the working group in future.

HiR - AEBERREF - ANERRBERIAERM  WE
BielEE T ITIRAMMATIIE A

Subsequent to the formation of the working group
comprising of different professionals, such as the
Registered Housing Managers and the Chartered
Surveyors, the Group has taken part in tendering of
various non-domestic property management contracts
including carparks, shopping complex, government office
building and educational institute, etc.

ARIENME (BREIRIZEEAL T MEERE R
APRIEE) & AEE2ETRBEETYEERSNNK
2 BEEES  BYES  BARAABRABRRK
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During the period, the Group has commenced provision
of management services from different private and public
sectors including:-

HN AEEERBRATRALERAEXRRBHEER
%/

— St. Fancis of Assis Caritas School;

- EREEEIE

— May Shing Court of Housing Department;

- BEFEEMI

— Full Shing Plaza, Yuen Long;

- TEIEEES

— U-Town Shopping Arcade;

- U-Town®&i5 :

- King's Park Lane;

- HREMBAE:

- The Hong Kong International Theme Parks Ltd.
- BEEBRTIBRLERERAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated
in the Prospectus

BREBAFL XK EE

BEEEWR DT

R mpE(E)
EBEGREREREZ LR (H)

Actual business progress

Purchase additional equipment
such as car park control equipment
and elevated working platforms for
the expanded customer portfolio;
REBANZFHESBEREIN
VR MEEISEERER
mARIEFE:

Continue to take part in
tendering of various
non-residential  property
management contracts.
BE2NZEFTENEER
BHNTEZE -

The success in acquiring the above-mentioned contracts
is encouraging and has proved our efforts for the past
year. The Group has great confidence in exploring and
expanding the Company’s pre-determined goal of facilities
management portfolio continuously in the future.
RNEE EREHT ASSE YERKMEFNEN K
SEFMEL R BREEFRRRBERARAAMREE
SREEMEREI B

In order to provide better services, additional
equipment will be provided to the expanded customer
portfolio after further investigation on the demand and
cost.

RIEHEERE EHFTREKTEE-—FRAE
% BREHEZXEBEUNRREPHES -

To attract potential carpark clients, the Group has
formulated business plans on operation, demand and
supply, cost effectiveness, energy-saving, equipment
and promotional strategy etc. Most of these plans are
being reviewed by the potential clients.

RESIBEFESEP AEBEEHLE FTRK
e AR - Bhfe R REERBE D ERE]
a8l - ZEFEABLO EREBEEFEESEPR

To further expand our property management portfolio,
staff of the marketing team will continue to take
part in tendering of various non-residential property
management contracts which include the Kai Fuk
Industrial Centre (Kowloon Bay) the Wang Lung
Industrial Building (Tsuen Wan) and The Jade Plaza
(Jordan).

RE-—FTERVEZEEES MEEHEEHKNET
BEE2NZREITEVEEERAANTES  85F
NEERMBIEDL ZEREIZEREREHES
B o

Annual Report 2014/15
2014/15% 3§

23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme

A group of old tenement buildings in To Kwa Wan, which
were renovated a few years ago, were found having structural
damages in August 2013. The Buildings Department officials
inspected the buildings immediately and promptly declared
the buildings dangerous. Occupants were ordered to vacate
the buildings within a relatively short period of time. Community
concerns were widely reported by the mass media. In
December 2013, the Urban Renewal Authority voluntarily
involved and speedily implemented the renewal project for
the buildings with lucrative compensation packages for the
owners. Old building owners understand the minor repairs
will improve the buildings to an acceptable standard but the
old buildings constructed at the then outdated building
standard may impose potential danger resulted from aging,
climate changes and environmental factors. Also, after this
incident, it was envisaged the Urban Renewal Authority may
step in to redevelop the old buildings so as to avoid adverse
criticism, if they are condemned unsafe.

Since then, the scheme gradually encountered unfavorable
responses and determent in the past years. Many old building
owners now wait for their flats to be acquired and redeveloped.
It is apparent the market has been changing drastically recently.
Though efforts were endeavored to promote the scheme in the
targeted old districts, unfortunately, they were in vain. For cost-
effectiveness, the establishment of one property management
team for the year ended 31 March 2015 was restrained and
no expenditure related to the scheme for the said period was
incurred. During that period of time, the Company continued
to assign senior staff and their subordinates to promote the
scheme and research the property market. The recent
developments and observations are summarized as below:

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme (continued)

1.

Persistently high real estate prices

Inspite of the government’s determination to curb the
soaring real estate prices and the levy of Double Stamp
Duty, the property market shows no sign of cooling down
in 2014 and the first quarter of 2015 mainly due to the
scarcity of land and the acute shortage of supply.
Prevailing long term planning aiming to solve the problem
takes years to increase the housing stocks. In 2015, the
Directors perceive that most of the owners of the old
buildings speculate the values of their properties are
most favorable from now to a couple of years later or
till the tension of land supply is relieved. As such, they
incline to dispose of their properties rather than
revitalizing them for better and safe living condition.

Scarcity of land supply

In 2014 and the first quarter of 2015, a major land
resumption plan in the New Territories by the Hong Kong
government faced strong opposition and saw a major
setback. While the government encounters formidable
opposition and obstruction in acquiring land for development,
relaxing and promoting the redevelopment of old buildings
including factory and other non-residential buildings are
advocated. Consequently, it is expected that there will be
strong demand for redevelopment of old buildings. The
heavy demand on acquisition of these types of buildings
further discourages the old building owners to improve their
buildings with the hope for early redevelopment.

Community support

The old buildings are owned by individual owners and
do not have incorporated owners establishment at large.
The Group’s planning to promote and implement the old
building management scheme is influenced by the views
and support of the local leaders. Though their responses
were favorable and promising initially before the Company
was listed on 11 October 2013. In 2014 and the first
quarter of 2015, there was less support from those social
leaders. The Directors believe the change in attitude is
attributable to the reasons explained above and the
recent social and political atmosphere in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWE D

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Implementation of the old district property management
scheme (continued)

In view of the above, the management anticipates that the
scheme is and will be facing great difficulties. Though much
effort such as communicating or connecting with council
members, awaring the trend of government policy, promoting
the scheme and continuing to research the market for exploring
the targeted or other possible buildings, the scheme
implementation will be further reviewed in due course.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties in Implementation of
the Business Plan

There is no assurance that the Group’s future business plans
will materialise, or result in the conclusion or execution of
any agreement within the planned time frame. The Group’s
future business plans may be hindered by other factors
beyond its control.

The Group will also be exposed to profitability risk, liquidity
risk and credit risk when implementing the old district property
management scheme. Under this scheme, the sub-contracting
costs will be borne by the Group first. There can be no
assurances that the Group’s operation under this scheme
would remain as profitable as the Directors currently estimate
during the term of the management contract. Furthermore,
the receivable amounts will be settled by the customers by
installments and will not be recovered within the normal
operating cycle, additional financial resources will be needed
in maintaining the Group’s operation under this scheme. The
Group will also be subject to credit risk if the customer defaults
on installment payment. The implementation of the old district
property management scheme will be further reviewed in due
course.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Use of proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company under the Placing as set out in the Prospectus were
approximately HK$17.5 million, which was different from the
estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$24.4 million
(estimated on the assumption that the placing price would
be the mid-point of the stated range as stated in the
Prospectus). For the period from 20 September 2013 until
31 March 2015, the Group has applied the net proceeds as
follows:

EEENMEDI

FHHFERERR
BERBBRERMEAR SRR BITHRG
MERSRIBFENALI0EE T F
RIRAMEET B8 SRIBF B 492,4408 7% T (1%
BREEEEBABRERMIIEZERE
B WA 8 E ) 5E2013F9A20HE E
20153 A31H LB AEB BRI T A
NERFTSRIEFE

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FREREFEE (B8ET)

Available Utilised Unutilised

A A 28 A AXEHA

Repayment of bank loans EERITER 7.5 7.5 —
Implementation of old district EERYEEIETE

property management scheme 1.2 - 1.2

Expansion of the property hEYEERHES
management portfolio 2.9 2.9 -
11.6 10.4 1.2

The unutilised balance of the net proceeds will be applied
in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the
Prospectus.

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

The Group faces intense competition which may adversely
affect its market share and profitability. The property
management industry in Hong Kong is competitive and the
competition may exert some pressure on the service fees of
property management companies. The Group may therefore
be required to reduce its fees or maintain low service fees
in view of the market pressure so as to retain customers or
pursue new business opportunities. The Group’s revenue
stream and profitability may also be adversely affected if the
customers terminate the services contracts with the Group,
whether by serving written notice or for the reason of breach
or material breach of the terms or conditions thereunder,
prior to the expiry date.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Dan, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 21 January 2015. Mr. Liu is a Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He is also a Chairman of the Board and
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is an entrepreneur with over 10 years of chief
executive experience in the United States (“US”) and Mainland
China enterprises. He founded and set up his own business,
namely Fobuss Investment Co., Inc in San Francisco in 2004.
Since 2006, Mr. Liu Dan was also the director of several
companies in the financial sector in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), such as Fobuss Asset Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi, aged 55, is an Executive Director of the
Group. He is responsible for business operation, finance
management and sales and marketing. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Ho Ying Choi has resigned as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group due to reassignment of functions
of the Directors with effect from 30 April 2015.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi holds a Bachelor's degree of science from
the Memorial University of Newfoundland, Canada.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung,
member of the Group’s senior management. Mr. Lau Ping
Kwai, a member of the Group’s senior management, is the
spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Choi’s cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr.
Ho Ying Choi is not connected with any other Directors,
member of the senior management, Substantial Shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy, aged 52, was appointed as Executive
Director on 6 February 2015. Mr. Shen graduated from the
Simon Fraser University with a Master’s degree in Business
Administration (“MBA”). He also obtained a Masters of Law
in Chinese Business Law from the Open University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), a certified public
accountant in US, a chartered financial planner and a member
of the Canadian Institute of Financial Planning. Mr. Shen has
over 15 years of management experience in private and listed
companies in both Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr.
Shen had been the acting chief executive officer and chief
financial officer of Universal Holdings Limited, now known as
China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited (stock code:
419); the chief financial officer of Fortune Oil Holdings Limited,
and deputy general manager of China Merchants Holdings
(International) Company Limited (stock code: 144). In February
2014, Mr. Shen was appointed as a member of the HKICPA
Disciplinary Panel (Statutory Committee). In October 2013,
he was appointed as a member of the Appeal Panel of the
Green Building Council of Hong Kong. Since November 2012,
Mr. Shen has been a member of China People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) of Changchun City, the PRC.
From 2006 to 2013, Mr. Shen had been appointed as a
member to various sector advisory committees of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council.

Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien, aged 37, was appointed as Executive
Director with effect from 6 February 2015. Ms. Lai graduated
from the University of Auckland, New Zealand with a Bachelor
of Commerce and a Bachelor of Music. She was the executive
assistant to the chairman of Camden Rich Limited between
2006 and 2013. Throughout her employment with the
aforementioned private equity firm, Ms. Lai has managed
various private equity projects spanning over different sectors,
including education, media and retail. Ms. Lai is well versed
in the media industry. Prior to joining the private equity field,
she served a managerial role in the SKY TV, one of the pay
television networks in New Zealand from 2000 to 2004. She
joined the Hong Kong Cable TV Limited in 2004 and
subsequently the Universal Holdings Limited, now known as
China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited, (stock code:
419) in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shum Lok To, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 28 July 2014. Mr. Shum was
re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 6 February 2015. He graduated from the
City University of Hong Kong, with a bachelor of Business
Administration with honours Degree in Accountancy in 2000.
He is a member of the HKICPA and The Institute of Chartered
Accounts in England and Wales. Mr. Shum has over 14 years
of experience in finance, accounting, external and internal
auditing in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers as a senior associate and manager
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as a manager. Since 2008,
Mr. Shum was the finance manager of a subsidiary of a
multinational conglomerate company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was promoted to his current position as the
head of Finance of a joint venture company at Guangdong,
the PRC in 2010. Since October 2014, Mr. Shum has also
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Larry Jewelry International Company Limited (stock code:
8351).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Bai Jin Rong has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 6 February 2015.

Mr. Bai, aged 64, graduated from the Beijing Normal University
in 1985. He is an independent non-executive director of China
City Railway Transportation Technology Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 1522) since 7 December 2011. Mr. Bai
was the vice board chairman and general manager of the
Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited from 2005 to
2010. From 2003 to 2004, Mr. Bai was the deputy director
of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing Municipality.
From June 2005 to June 2011, Mr. Bai was an Executive
Director of the Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock
code: 392). From 1992 to 1997, Mr. Bai served as a deputy
director of Beijing Economic Structure Reforms Committee.
From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Bai served as a deputy director and
director of the Policy Research Office of Beijing Chemical
Industry Group. Mr. Bai has over 25 years of experience in
economics, finance and enterprise management.

Mr. Chow Siu Lui has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the chairman
of the Audit Committee with effect from 6 February 2015.

Mr. Chow, aged 54, has a wealth of experience in fund raising
and initial public offering (“IPO”) activities in Hong Kong and
in accounting and financial areas. He is currently the managing
director of private equities team in VMS Investment Group
(HK) Ltd. and he is responsible for providing advice on issues
regarding fund raising, pre-IPO group restructuring and due
diligence exercises for investment projects. Prior to that, Mr.
Chow was in service with KPMG Hong Kong for about 28
years and was admitted as one of its partners in 1995. He
was then mainly responsible for IPO advisory services and
assisting in fund raising activities in local and overseas stock
exchanges.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chow is the chairman of the Professional Development
Committee and the Investment Strategy Task Force of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”), and
also the chairman of the Mainland Development Strategies
Advisory Panel of the HKICPA.

Mr. Chow has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of the Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607)
since December 2013 and was an independent non-executive
director of the NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659) from
March 2012 to June 2012.

Mr. Chow was awarded a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formally known
as Hong Kong Polytechnic), Hong Kong in November 1983.
By profession, he became a fellow of the ACCA in July 1991,
the HKICPA in December 1993 and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators (“ICSA”) and HKICS both in
October 2009.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee with effect from 6 February
2015.

Mr. Alan Tso, aged 31, graduated from the Cambridge
University with a bachelor’'s and a master’s degrees in Land
Economy, majoring in real estate finance and property law.
Mr. Tso is the co-founder of the Foresea Capital Group Limited
(“FCG”) and the China Mini Storage Limited (“CMS”). Prior
to establishing FCG and CMS, based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked
as an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China
Real Estate Fund, a joint venture offshore real estate fund
sponsored by the China Everbright Limited (stock code: 165)
and the Ashmore Group PLC (London Stock Exchange stock
code: ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also
worked at Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial Real Estate team
where he was principally involved in the firm’s principal
investing activities in Asian real estate. He also worked at the
HSBC’s Global Capital Markets -ABS & Structured Bonds Team
where he was principally involved in the bank’s securitisation
business. As for public services, Mr. Tso has been invited to
become the 10th session member of the Beijing Youth
Federation (HKSAR), the 3rd session member of the Beijing
Overseas Friendship Association (HKSAR) and the Beijing
Group Convener of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
(“CRECC”) Hong Kong Chapter. Also, he has been appointed
as a part-time lecturer for the Asia-Pacific Commercial Real
Estate Academy (“APCREA”), an educational institution
sponsored by the CRECC's China Commercial Real Estate
Commission.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, aged 62, one of the founders of the
Group. He was appointed as a director of KSU in August
1984. He was then appointed as an Executive Director on
15 August 2012 and was responsible for the Group’s overall
business development. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung has resigned as
the Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Group with
effect from 6 February 2015. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung remains
a Director of KSU.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
Executive Director. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the
Group’s senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying
Cheung’s cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is
not connected with any other Directors or member of senior
management, Substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, aged 64, is an associate director of KSU
(note). He has been working in KSU for more than fifteen
years. He joined KSU as a property management officer in
September 1996 and was promoted to this position in April
2008. He is responsible for supervising property managers
and advising on the improvement of the Group’s overall
standard. He is also responsible for marketing in the private
sector.

Mr. Lau obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the
School of Professional and Continuing Education of The
University of Hong Kong (“HKUSPACE”) in August 2000 and
was awarded a Diploma in Housing Management by the same
institute in September 2002. He was elected a corporate
member of the Chartered Institute of Housing (“CIH”) in
October 2002 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Housing in November 2002. In April 2003, he registered as
a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing Managers
Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall

standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau is the spouse of the cousin of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung,
a director of KSU, and Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an Executive Director.
Same as disclosed, Mr. Lau is not connected with any other
Directors, member of the senior management, Substantial
Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Fong Shek Hung, aged 55, is an associate director of KSU
(note). He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management, customer relations and administration.

Mr. Fong worked for the Hong Kong Government from 1978
to 2001. He joined the Housing Department in October 1987
and was promoted to the position of housing officer in October
1989. He resigned in August 2001 and subsequently served
as property manager in Synergis Management Services Limited.
He was the district general manager before he left the company
in February 2011 and joined KSU in May 2011 as senior
property manager. He was promoted to the position of associate
director of KSU (note) in February 2012.

Mr. Fong has awarded a Diploma in Housing Management
by HKUSPACE in September 1997. He was elected as a
corporate member of the CIH in June 1999 and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Housing in June 2001. In May
2001, he registered as a Professional Housing Manager at
the Housing Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall

standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.

EENGHREEERRE

BREERE(E)

ML RAEHTE(RITES) ARMAE
HAREBERBAES)RBNR BB
BEEI AREEANRAREAMEMBES -
SREEEKE  TERRIERER

FiBE%LE OO BBFEHMAZHEES
(Hiet) BXEBAEEEBYEER BEFH
BRITHRI{E-

F7 Fe R 1978 E2001 30 1 BB BT ©
BR1987F10AMAREE @ WK 1989F
I0BEAAEEREE T ®MN2001F8A &
B EGETHESERBARATNY
I o HN201142 ABEFI A B AT A R
42218 A2011F5 AMAB R A ETS
R EARIB o (RFA20124E2 A B FH A7 R
ARHMEESR (K7

FRERIQIFIOAREREREBHEEE
BT BEEREEIE U - N 1999F6 A%
BALERBHETREESNASE L
NKR2001F6AEERBEAEREKEES
28 -MN2001F58 FREELEFME
ERIMAEXRELE -

Hrat [Ht R EE B R A RIBAL - IR B GG KAl
XM EMMRANTIEIES |- ARLHBFEE
EXTRRANERAEERESTHYERE
B (DEBEAS BN T BEEE R4
SENEPRIE -

Annual Report 2014/15
2014/15% 3§

35



36

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, aged 48, is a financial controller of
KSU. He has been working in KSU for about 13 years. He
holds an MBA from the University of South Australia, Adelaide,
South Australia. He is responsible for accounting and financial
management of the Group’s operation.

Mr. Cheng started working in Li, Tang, Chen & Company in
the auditing field in February 1989 and was promoted to the
post of audit supervisor in April 1993. He joined Guangnan
(KK) Supermarket Limited as accounting manager in January
1995. He was later promoted to assistant financial controller
in August 2000 as his last position. He joined KSU as an
assistant accounting manager in October 2001 and promoted
to the position of financial controller.

Mr. Yeung Pui Hung, aged 66, is a senior property manager
of KSU. He has already worked in KSU for 16 years and was
promoted to this position in April 2003. He is mainly
responsible for supervision of property management and
customer relations.

For the period from September 1975 to January 1998, Mr.
Yeung worked in the Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. He joined
KSU as administration manager in February 1998.

He was awarded a Diploma in Management Studies jointly
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management
Association in September 1992.

Mr. Mo Kin Keung, aged 52, is a chief facility and property
manager of KSU. He is mainly responsible for daily operation
and management of major customers.

Mr. Mo was employed by the PCCW Group from December
1986 to August 2004. He was an assistant facilities manager
of the Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, the
infrastructure division spun off in May 2004 before his
departure. He then served as a property manager in Vigers
Property Management Service (Hong Kong) Limited from
October 2004 to July 2008 and afterwards worked as an
assistant property manager in ISS Facility Services Limited
from October 2008 to June 2009. He joined KSU as a property
manager in April 2010 and later promoted to the position of
chief facility and property manager.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Mo was awarded a Continuing Education Diploma in
Property Management by the City University of Hong Kong
in November 2002 and was elected as a corporate member
of the CIH in September 2006. In November 2006, he
registered as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing
Managers Registration Board and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree of Art (Honours) in Housing Studies in November
2006. In November 2011, he was elected as a professional
member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He
was awarded the designation of the member of International
Professional Security Association in June 2010. After one year,
he obtained a Master’'s degree in Facilities Management by
the University of Greenwich, United Kingdom through a long
distance learning course in June 2011.

Mr. So Sui Shan, aged 61, is a senior property manager of
KSU. He has already worked in KSU for more than five years.
He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management and customer relations.

Mr. So had served as a civil servant of the Hong Kong
Government since 1973. He was promoted as a housing
manager of the Housing Authority in January 1996. He served
as a senior property estate manager in Urban Property
Management Limited from August 2001 until September 2005.
He was a senior property manager of Shui On Properties
Management Services Limited from October 2005 to December
2007. He then joined KSU as senior property manager in
July 2008.

Mr. So obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the
Department of Extra-Mural Studies of HKU (now known as
HKUSPACE) in August 1981. He was awarded a graduate
grade of membership of The Institution of Fire Engineers of
United Kingdom in March 1986. He then pursued his studies
in legal field and obtained a bachelor’'s degree of Laws from
the University of London as an external student in August
1992. He registered as a Professional Housing Manager at
the Housing Managers Registration Board and was awarded
a Certificate in Building Services Engineering by the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education in March 2001 and
July 2001 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

He was elected as a corporate member of the CIH and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing in 2002 and
passed the qualifying examination for estate agents of the
Estate Agents Authority in July 2007.

Mr. Ng Wai Kee, Ricky, aged 42, is a senior property manager
of KSU. He has already worked in KSU more than 2 years
and was promoted to this position in January 2015. He is
mainly responsible for supervision of property management
and customer relations.

During the year 2006, Mr. Ng joined the Synergis Management
Services Limited as assistant property manager and during
the period from year 2008 to 2012, he joined Oasis Well
Management Services Ltd and was finally promoted to the
position of managing director.

Mr. Ng obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Management and Technology, USA
through a long distance learning course in 2011.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to upholding high standards of corporate governance. The
Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of
the Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and
safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The principles adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality Board, sound internal controls, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. The Company engaged a
third-party professional firm to conduct an internal control
review for the year ended 31 March 2015. In the opinion of
the Board, save as disclosed under the paragraph “Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer” on page 44 of the annual report,
the Company had complied with the CG Code for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions in
securities of the Company. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not
aware of any noncompliance with the required standard of
dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors during the year ended 31 March
2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since
11 October 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with
policies. The composition and diversity policies of the Board
are reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure
that its changes in composition will not result in any undue
interference. The Board members should possess appropriate
professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members
according to the Company’s situations and needs. While
participating in nomination and recommendation of director
candidates during the year, each member of the Board may
consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience in achieving diversity for the benefit
of the Company’s various business development and
management. The Board is to review the policy concerning
diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report,
including any quantitative targets and standards and its
progress with policy implementation.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board had
reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the Board
composition and diversity policy appropriate.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for the Group’s
affair under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the
Directors should make decision objectively in the interests of
the Company. The overall responsibilities of the Board include
considering and making decisions on setting the cooperate
goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s strategy and
monitoring the implementation; diversification and extension
of activities into new business area; approving the annual,
half year and quarterly results; dividend policy; material
acquisitions and disposal; reviewing and monitoring the
Group’s internal control systems; and monitoring the
performance of the Management.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group to the Management. The delegated
functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. The Board
gives clear directions to the management as to the matters
that must be approved by the Board before discussions are
made on behalf of the Group by the Management. All the
Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively and acting in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

Composition

including 4
and 3

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors,
Executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Dan (appointed on 21 January 2015)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien (appointed on 6 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shum Lok To (appointed as Executive Director on 28 July
2014 and re-designated to Non-executive Director on 6
February 2015)
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EEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Jin Rong (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (appointed on 6 February 2015)

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report. All Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each Executive Director has sufficient experience, knowledge
and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out
his duties effectively and efficiently.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board set up a Nomination Committee to
recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
directors of the Company.

All Executive Directors namely, Mr. Liu Dan, Mr. Ho Ying Choi,
Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy and Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien, have
respectively entered into a service contract with the the
Company for a term of 3 years unless terminated by not less
than 1 to 3 months’ notice in writing served by either part
on the other. Executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting (“AGM”)
in accordance with the Articles.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Bai
Jin Rong, Mr. Chow Siu Lui and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan and
the Non-executive Director, Mr. Shum Lok To have respectively
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of 3 years unless terminated by not less than 2 months’
notice in writing served by either part on the other. The
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM in accordance with the Articles.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (continued)

At the forthcoming AGM, all Directors will retire from office
and are eligible for re-election. At each following AGM, one-
third of the Directors are required to retire from office. Each
Directors shall retire from office once every 3 years. The
Directors to retire in every year shall be those appointed by
the Board during the year and those who have been longest
in office since their last election or re-election. New Directors
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and may
submit themselves for re-election at the AGM immediately
following their appointments.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
were independent during the year.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the members of the Board.
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MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management (the “Management’). The delegated
functions and assignments are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include
considering and making decisions on implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; strategic
planning of different business and functions; closely monitoring
operational and financial results in accordance with plans
and budgets; putting adequate operational, planning and
financial control systems in place; and managing the Group’s
day to day business.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be divided.
Mr. Liu Dan has been appointed as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 30
April 2015. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals with sufficient number thereof being Independent
Non-executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board fulfilled the requirement of appointing at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors and they
represented at least one-third of the Board as stipulated by
the GEM Listing Rules. It met requirement of having at least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have appropriate and sufficient experience
and qualification to carry out their duties so as to fully
represent the interests of the shareholders.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

Directors’ attendance record of Board, Committee and General
Meetings during the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

EEERRS

EZ2E28 RRASRBERER

HZE2015F3A31HILFE EEHFES
A ;z\ = &HX?XAZ ﬂEijZZDT

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/AERLESSE
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Directors Note Board  Committee =~ Committee  Committee Meeting
E= Bt EZE® ENZEE FHZEE REZESRRBEAS
Executive Directors: TEE:
Liu Dan Liu Dan 1 1/2 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ho Ying Choi {a FEBA 11/11 n/a 2/2 212 1/1
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy MR 2 11 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien Bk 2 1/1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Ho Ying Cheung s 3 10/10 n/a n/a 212 71
Non-executive Director: FHTES
Shum Lok To =% 4=t 4 8/9 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Kam Tak Yeung E£RE 5 7/10 n/a n/a n/a 11
Tso Ping Cheong EF0E 6 718 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Independent Non-executive ~ BIUFHTEE:

Directors:
Bai Jin Rong HE% 7 1/1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Chow Siu Lui &\& 7 11 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Tso Siu Lun, Alan EZiR 7 11 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cheung Kwong Wai KHE 8 8/10 4/4 n/a 212 11
Tong Sze Chung ERR 8 8/10 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
Wong Tsz Ho BIR 8 7110 4/4 212 212 1/1
So Chung Shing B 9 416 2/2 0/1 0/1 n/a
Notes i3
n/a: not applicable nfa:  NiE A
1 Mr. Liu Dan was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 1 Liu DanE £ EZEANITES * A2015F1A4

21 January 2015.

2 Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy and Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien were appointed
as Executive Directors with effect from 6 February 2015.

3 Mr. Ho Ying Cheung resigned as an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Board with effect from 6 February 2015.

4 Mr. Shum Lok To was appointed as an Executive Director with effect
from 28 July 2014 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director with
effect from 6 February 2015.

5 Mr. Kam Tak Yeung resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect
from 6 February 2015.

21BN -

AEEEERBBMRL T EZERRITES
201562 A6 B RBAER °

MEFEEBRERTESRESTSIE &
201552 HO B AR -

LB L ERERNTES - H2014F7H28
e - HRERERIFNTES * B2015
F2HEHEBER -

EREREREFNTES - A201552A6H
REAERY ©
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES (continued)

Note (continued)

6 Mr. Tso Ping Cheong, Brian was appointed as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 28 July 2014 and resigned with effect from 6 February
2015.

7 Mr. Bai Jin Rong, Mr. Chow Siu Lui and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan were
appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors with effect from 6
February 2015.

8 Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Mr. Tong Sze Chung and Mr. Wong Tsz Ho
resigned as Independent Non-executive Directors with effect from 6
February 2015.

9 Mr. So Chung Shing was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 25 September 2014 and resigned with effect
from 6 February 2015.

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors
in advance. Notice of at least fourteen days is given for a
regular Board meeting. For other Board and committees
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each
regular Board meeting to ensure that the Directors have
sufficient time to review the related documents and be
adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to all Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are
open for Director’s inspection.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

All Directors, including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities
of the Group.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code during the year ended 31 March
2015, that all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERBRE

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EEREERBEEE)

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2015 according to the records provided by

REZSESRE2LE  EFNEE2015
FIA3IE LFEMERZFIIBAAT

the Directors as follows:

Reading newspapers, Reading

to obtain update materials

relating to economy, relevant to

Attending seminars, accounting, directors’
conferences or rules, law or duties and

forums regulation, etc. responsibilities
BESE UNEER
SMHHE . K8 g5 %E iR MEREENRE
Directors S SRURE SERSNENER RESEEBRHME
Executive Directors: HITES
Liu Dan (appointed Liu Dan(F2015%
on 21 January 2015) 1A21BEST) v v v
Ho Ying Choi {A] & B Ve V4 V4
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy LEZE (20155
(appointed on 2H6EEZE)
6 February 2015) Ve v V4
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien B (FA2015F
(appointed on 2H6BEEZRE)
6 February 2015) v V4 V4
Ho Ying Cheung {a] FE R (720155
(resigned on 2HE6RET)
6 February 2015) v v v
Non-executive Directors: FHITES !
Shum Lok To (appointed 2% (7020145
as an Executive Director ~ 7H28REEEZER
on 28 July 2014 and MITES  HER
re-designated as Non- 20152 H6HH
Executive Director TEFRTES)
on 6 February 2015) v v v
Kam Tak Yeung (resigned £15%& (20155
on 6 February 2015) 2 A6HEHT) v V4 v/
Tso Ping Cheong (resigned E & (R2015%F
on 6 February 2015) 2R6RBHE) v v v
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EEERRS

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

ESHEERRETE (H)

Reading newspapers, Reading
to obtain update materials
relating to economy, relevant to
Attending seminars, accounting, directors’
conferences or rules, law or duties and
forums regulation, etc. responsibilities
MERE  UREEH
SMHHE KB g5 %RE- iR HERESNRE
Directors = eRUWE SERSNENER REREBHMR
Independent non-executive B IFHITES !
Directors:
Bai Jin Rong (appointed ~ B&& (2015
on 6 February 2015) 2A6REZ(E) v v v
Chow Siu Lui (appointed  #B/N& (7220155
on 6 February 2015) 2A6HEZRT) Ve V4 v
Tso Siu Lun, Alan B (R 20155
(appointed on 6 2A6HEZRT)
February 2015) v Ve v
Cheung Kwong Wai SRR (20154
(resigned on 6 February  2H6BE&HE)
2015) v e V4
Tong Sze Chung (resigned BB (20155
on 6 February 2015) 2A6HEHT) v V4 V4
Wong Tsz Ho (resigned HT5(R2015%F
on 6 February 2015) 2 A6 RBHE) v v v
So Chung Shing (appointed #R{FAK (7X20145F
on 25 September 2014 9OR2SHERT
and resigned on 6 H1&M2015%F
February 2015) 2 6HET) v V4 V4
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, available on the Company’s website, in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
is currently composed of all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Siu Lui (chairman), Mr. Bai Jin
Rong and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015 and reviewed the Company’s audited annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the unaudited
quarterly and interim results during the year ended 31 March
2015.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The function of the Audit Committee includes the following:

(i)

Relationship with the Company’s auditors:

(a)

to be primarily responsible for make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging and
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For
this purpose, “external auditor’ includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to
be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on ay
matters where action or improvement is needed.

EEERRE
EREEE(HA)
ERZAROBLOEUATEE -

BN BZEENH BER -

TERZE ENEERERI
EzBMRESeRIEEAR
1t /B SN S A2 BUA 0 7 BN K2 BS R M
K e ¥R ] A 8 A% BT B B
kit R % I BUAT RO I RE

REREERN RERINS R
Bib B9 X8 S 1% R AZ BB R B A
- BZEREGRNEZLIERN
MR EAZ A RBE R LIELE
KEEREEBRET

g4 HMES A BUAM 1R 1 IF X BUR 5
B E R - I T PAFAAT o BEUL AR

mE MNERBEBRERE
R A RIEENE — R HRE - A
BHRENEEEZ TWEAERE-
S—EEENTEMEEHEERDN
FE=7 EREBRT 2l E &%
ERBRZBERBHARNA
THBREHN B OERE
%%°$¢2§,§\@H§FMEHM%HX
THRAENEERNESTER
WHE 25

Annual Report 2014/15
2014/15% 3§

49



50

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information:

(a) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and/or quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and
practices;

(2) major judgmental areas;
(3) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(5) compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures:

(a) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2015. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year and recommended approval to the
Board.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference, available on the Company’s
website, in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee is currently composed of 2 Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dan and Mr. Ho Ying Choi and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Bai Jin Rong
(chairman), Mr. Chow Siu Lui and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan.

During the year under review, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee’s principal duties are the
determination of specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess the
performance of Executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Group.

Remuneration of Directors

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Directors’ fees and all other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors during the year are set out on an individual
and named basis in note 15(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EEERRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Remuneration of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

FMEEE(A)
EBREEBNTH

BIECEERTRANTAMENB.1.5  H=E
20153 A31H It FE - &R ERE 2 FH M
SEFHOT

Number of individual

In the band of EiE AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 % %1,000,000/% 7T, 7

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the
5 highest paid employees are set out in note 15(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference, available on the Company’s website, in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. At the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee consists of 5
members, of which the majority are Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Bai Jin Rong, Mr. Chow Siu
Lui and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (chairman) and Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dan and Mr. Ho Ying Choi.

During the year under review, 2 meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the
Board at least annually; making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become the Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
nominated for directorships of the Company; assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;
reviewing and recommending the appointment of new
Directors; identifying the competences required to enable the
Board to fulfill its responsibilities; and reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy established for implementing diversity on the
Board periodically.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee is a committee under the
Company’s Audit Committee and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ying
Choi, an Executive Director and comprises Mr. Lau Ping Kwai,
the associate director (note), Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the
associate director (note) and Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, the
financial controller. The Group’s legal adviser, Y.C. Lee Pang,
Kwok & Ip Solicitors, is procured to provide legal advices and
to attend the committee meeting on a needed basis. For the
year ended 31 March 2015, 12 meetings were held and the
legal adviser had participated in 2 meetings. The minutes of
the meetings were distributed to the legal adviser, Y.C. Lee,
Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, and the Audit Committee members
for scrutiny and comment. The Committee addresses the
matters concerning the compliance of law and regulations,
contract terms and litigation cases of the Group.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate
director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision
of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the
Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer
relations.

SAFETY COMMITTEE

To raise the Management’s awareness of the health and safety
in the workplace, the Group formed a Safety Committee
comprising Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the associate director (note)
of KSU, and Mr. Law Kwok Leung, a senior property manager
of KSU, eight other committee members from (i) Property
Management Department; (ii) Cleaning Department; (iii)
Security Department; (iv) Maintenance Department; and (v)
Administration Department, and two members appointed by
an external safety consultancy firm (the “Safety Consultant”).
Among eight of the ten members who are the Group’s staff,
at least five members, including Mr. Fong Shek Hung and
Mr. Law Kwok Leung, have more than ten years of experience
in property management while the other two members have
more than fifteen years of experience in cleaning and
maintenance services industry.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate
director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision
of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the
Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer
relations.
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EEERRS

SAFETY COMMITTEE (continued)

The responsibilities of the Safety Committee are, among other
things, to establish the Group’s workplace health and safety
management system, formulate and implement the internal
health and safety policies, and arrange staff trainings. The
Safety Committee holds monthly meetings to review the
effectiveness of the system. The Group engages the Safety
Consultant for the review and recommendation in respect of
safety in buildings managed by the Group. For the year ended
31 March 2015, the Committee held nine meetings and 66
buildings or estates were reviewed by the Safety Consultant.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the remuneration for
audit and non-audit services are summarized below:

Z2EEE(H)

Z2Z B R(ETEE)ZBYAEEN
TEMTRERZEZEERG HIERE
ERRRENR Z2HER WL B THEI -
REZRBEBABRTER R ZAHK
A-AEEZRAZEZER AKEETERN
REZ2ETRE RIEHER BE2015
FIASIBILFE - ZEGERTTNLRE
o OBEAEREREALEREETT
L2

BT =

B ZE2015F3A31AIEFE  BRIFEX
ARISEVF BRSNS -

2015
20154
HK$
BT
Audit services ZHRT% 500,000
Non-audit services: IEIZENARTS
— Service fees for reviewing quarterly and interim —BHAEEEFE kT K E R
financial information of the Group 2 Ri%E 150,000
— Fee for professional services rendered on the — AR RERE BN RHEES
Company’s Composite Offer Document AR & R 100,000
Total A&t 750,000
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EEEREGREMBEHRRNESE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the EZMREBEHFIEAEBNTHRE

preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure that
the internal control measures are in place to safeguard the
Group’s assets and to comply with relevant regulations and
best practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control
and mitigate these risks. The management of the Company
reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company Secretary
was Mr. Tsui Siu Hung, Raymond (“Mr. Tsui”), a fellow
member of HKICPA and ACCA, and he was also the primary
corporate contact person at the Company. Mr. Tsui has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules by receiving
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Tsui
resigned as the Company Secretary and Mr. Yuen Poi Lam,
William was appointed as the Company Secretary with effect
from 1 April 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").
EGM shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the
purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry
in respect of the Company in writing to our Head Office at
22/F., Blink Building, No.111 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the
Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures
set out above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, there is no significant
change in its constitutional documents.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built
on ethics and integrity and increasing shareholders value as
a whole.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance and its financial
position are provided in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year end 31 March 2015
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2015
are set out on pages 72 to 73.

The state of affairs of the Company is set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past four financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 140 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 74 and in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2015,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law,
amounted to HK$26,663,033 (2014: HK$49,000,582)
including share premium of HK$28,838,055, accumulated
losses of HK$6,920,382 and option reserve of HK$745,360.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Dan (appointed on 21 January 2015)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien (appointed on 6 February 2015)
Mr. Ho Ying Cheung (resigned on 6 February 2015)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Shum Lok To (appointed as Executive Director on 28 July
2014 and re-designated from Executive Director to Non-
executive Director on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Kam Tak Yeung (resigned on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Tso Ping Cheong Brian (appointed on 28 July 2014 and
resigned on 6 February 2015)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Jin Rong (appointed on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Chow Siu Lui (appointed on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (appointed on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai (resigned on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Tong Sze Chung (resigned on 6 February 2015)

Mr. Wong Tsz Ho (resigned on 6 February 2015)

Mr. So Chung Shing (appointed on 25 September 2014 and
resigned on 6 February 2015)

In accordance with Articles of Association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors will retire and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Moreover,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting after
his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Lin Dan, Mr. Ho Ying Choi, Mr.
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy, Ms. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien, Mr. Shum Lok
To, Mr. Bai Jin Rong, Mr. Chow Siu Lui and Mr. Tso Siu Lun,
Alan shall hold office until the next following AGM of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 28 to
38 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is appointed
for an initial term of three year commencing from their
respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter
from year to year until terminated by two month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the respective director service contract with each
Director and the share options granted to Directors, and save
as disclosed under the paragraph “Connected Transaction”
on page 65 of the annual report, no Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group as well as the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Further
details of the Company’'s Remuneration Committee are set
out in the corporate governance report on page 51 of the
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the employees of the Group is determined
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees employed. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June
2014). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, total contributions paid or
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$9.1 million (2014: approximately HK$9.1
million) which had been recognized as expenses and included
in staff costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2015, the interest and short position of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions in the securities of the Company

(a) Ordinary shares of the Company

EEREFETBRAERAEQRAZE
IEBEENRESPHNEER AR
(&)

RAEAQFERHNFE
(a) ARATEBER

Percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest shares share capital
BEATE

8 SOREEME BHEE BITREFEDL
Mr. Liu Dan (note) Beneficial interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
Liu Dan%k4 (A75t) XEHEENE R ER 300,000,000 75%

Note:

Mr. Liu Dan is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company who is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Wiser Capital Management Limited, Mr. Liu Dan is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Wiser Capital Management Limited under Part XV of
the SFO.

Hitt

Liu Danfe £ AR A BIRIAITE S RITRBE KA
Wiser Capital Management Limited% &8 & %% 17 i% Zx
VEREA A - IREBESREEEMIEXVED - Liu Dan
9 A 15 4R A A Wiser Capital Management Limited#s
BRI A R o

(b) Share options (b) BRE

Percentage of the

Number of Number of Company’s issued

Name Capacity options held underlying shares share capital

HARDRE

=t 514 HEBREHE MHEROHE BITREBD

Mr. Shen Ka Yip, Timothy Beneficial owner 4,000,000 4,000,000 1%
LEEEE ExEAA

Mr. Lai Sze Yau, Vivien Beneficial owner 4,000,000 4,000,000 1%
REM T EnlEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers
as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons (other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

RARTE

all
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KRR NERR AR

2015F3A318 » THIAL(ERRRESE
HEZTHABRIN AR R BIRGD R AR
BAD R B IR IE B 5 M A B &I 553365178
HFEME MRS ESTAR

EERNER

Percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares share capital
EERFE
£8 S REREME REOEE BTREXEDL
Wiser Capital Management Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%
Wiser Capital Management Limited EREEA
Kingston Finance Limited Person having a security interest in shares
(“Kingston Finance”) (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
eFLHBERAR(FEME]) RO EEERER 2 AL (L)
Ample Cheer Limited (“Ample Cheer”) Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
Ample Cheer Limited([Ample Cheer]) %I @#ERE (1)
Best Forth Limited (“Best Forth”) Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
Best Forth Limited([Best Forth]) A m R (FfaEL)
Chu Yuet Wah (“Madam Chu”) Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 300,000,000 75%

FRE(ZFLL))

Note:

P A (B aE2)

Wit

1. According to the Corporate Substantial Shareholder Notices filed 1.
by Kingston Finance, Ample Cheer and Best Forth filed on 6
February 2015, Kingston Finance, as person having a security in
shares, is interested in 300,000,000 shares. Since Kingston
Finance is wholly-owned by Ample Cheer who in turn is 80%-owned
by Best Forth, Ample Cheer and Best Forth are deemed to be
interested in 300,000,000 shares held by Kingston.

2. According to the Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice filed 2.
by Madam Chu on 6 February 2015, Madam Chu is deemed to
be interested in 300,000,000 shares through corporations

controlled by her.

1R 1% € % & Bf 75 « Ample CheerXBest
ForthiA20152 A6 IE X 2 =B+ B
BREBA AELHBE(RROF#ES
1 #0425 2 A £ 74300,000,0008% A% 17
PR AR ST L8 & BAmple
Cheer® & # 5 * MAmple CheerfiBest
Forth# 5 80%# 2 B IttAmple Cheer &
Best Forth7[MiR AR & F|LE %555 2
300,000,0000% i1 AR A e e ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the Compliance Adviser of the Company, Ample
Capital Limited, as at 31 March 2015, except for the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and Ample Capital Limited dated 27 September
2013, neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors, employees
or close associates had any interest in relation to the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statement.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions

On 28 February 2014, More Rise Investment Limited (“More
Rise”), as the owner of the Tuen Mun office and storage
property in Hong Kong, and KSU entered into a rental
agreement (the “Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement”) under
which the Tuen Mun office and storage property in Hong
Kong is leased to KSU for a term of one year from 1 April
2014 to 31 March 2015 at a monthly rental of HK$23,000.
For each of the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the
aggregate rent paid by KSU to More Rise in respect of the
Tuen Mun office and storage property were HK$276,000 and
HK$252,000 respectively.

Pursuant to Rule 20.74(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement are
exempted from the shareholders’ approval, annual review and
all disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of the
transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement.

As at 31 March 2015, Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an Executive Director
and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, who resigned as an Executive
Director on 6 February 2015 and remained as a Director of
KSU as at 31 March 2015, had provided joint and several
unlimited personal guarantees in favour of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries within the Group for nil
consideration. At 31 March 2015, More Rise and Fortune
Trend Investment Limited, two companies controlled by Mr.
Ho Ying Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, had provided unlimited
guarantees and pledged their properties to secure banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries within the Group for
nil consideration.

Pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules, these
transactions are exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in
respect of the above financial assistance received.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 19 September
2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”) given by Mr. Ho Ying
Choi, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Topgrow Holdings Limited
(collectively the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company and
set out in Prospectus, the Covenantors made the annual
declaration on the compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition in this annual report as follows:

(a)

each of the Covenantors has not, and has procured each
of his/its associates and/or companies controlled by him/
it, which carries on a business which is, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any rights
or interest or otherwise not to be involved in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or
indirectly with the business currently and from time to
time engaged by the Group (the “Restricted Business”);

if each of the Covenantors and/or any of his/its associates
is offered or becomes aware of any project or new
business opportunity (“New Business Opportunity”) that
relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or
indirectly, he/it would (i) promptly within seven business
days notify the Group in writing of such opportunity and
provide such information as is reasonably required by
the Group in order to enable the Group to come to an
informed assessment of such opportunity; and (ii) use
his/its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity
is offered to the Group on terms no less favourable than
the terms on which such opportunity is offered to him/
it and/or his/its associates. During the year each of the
Covenantors and/or any of his/its associates was not
offered or became aware of any such New Business
Opportunity;

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (continued)

(c) each of the Covenantors provided the Group and the
Directors from time to time (including the independent
non-executive Directors) with all information necessary
for the annual review by the independent non-executive
Directors with regard to compliance of the terms of the
Deed of Non-competition and the enforcement of the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-
competition;

(d) each of the Covenantors did not invest or participate in
any project or business opportunity that competes or
may compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
activities engaged by the Group from time to time;

(e) each of the Covenantors did not solicit any existing or
then existing employee of the Group for employment by
him/it or his/its associates (excluding the Group);

(f) each of the Covenantors did not without the consent
from the Group, make use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to
his/its knowledge in his/its capacity as the controlling
shareholder of the Company for any purposes; and

(g) each of the Covenantors did procure his/its associates
(excluding the Group) not to invest or participate in any
project or business opportunity mentioned above, unless
pursuant to the provisions stipulated in the Deed of Non-
competition.

The Deed of Non-competition took effect upon Listing and
shall expire on the earlier of: (i) the day on which the Shares
cease to be listed on GEM or other recognised stock exchange;
or (ii) the day on which the Convenantors and his/its
associates, individually or taken as a whole, cease to own,
in aggregate, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Group directly or indirectly or cease to be deemed as
Controlling shareholder and do not have power to control the
Board or there is at least one other independent Shareholder
other than the Covenantors and his/its respective associates
holding more Shares than the Convenantors and his/its
respective associates taken together.

Accordingly, the Deed of Non-competition has ceased to be
of any force since the completion of the Share Purchase
Agreement on 25 November 2014.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year are as follows:

TEFFRHES

RSB M B TR A A R
HRABO BRI :

Purchases

and

cleaning

Revenue subcontracting

W BRLE

HK$ HK$

BT 75T

The largest customer BXARP 13,076,736 N/A ~iE A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEET 47,182,430 N/A 7 A
The largest supplier RAHIER N/A i@ 5,425,832
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EE ST N/A 73 12,167,888

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the controlling shareholders or Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
is interested in any business apart from the business operated
by the Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period of the Group are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on
pages 39 to 56 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
World Link CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Liu Dan
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

World Link CPA Limited

To the shareholders of
Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 139, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2015 and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ngan Hing Hon

Practising Certificate Number — P05294

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBREREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

2015 2014

20154 2014

Note HK$ HK$

Biat BT BT

Revenue & 9 339,721,845 324,981,419

Cost of services RR %A AN (269,280,141) (258,781,554)

Gross profit EF 70,441,704 66,199,365

Other revenue H bl s 10 349,850 279,302

Administrative expenses ITER S (44,121,824) (37,980,447)

Other operating expenses H b &@EMRST (18,717,508) (19,774,608)

Finance costs B AR 11 (658,207) (1,104,542)

Profit before tax BRE A% R 12 7,294,015 7,619,570

Income tax expense St 13 (2,319,591) (2,591,189)
Profit and total comprehensive income ZA&2Q FEE AEEFERE

for the year attributable to owners of FIRZEEBALEE

the Company 16 4,974,424 5,028,381

Earnings per share-basic BRERN -EX 14 0.012 0.014

Earnings per share-diluted BREFN-#F 14 0.012 0.014

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

At 31 March 2015 201543 H31H

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$ HK$
Hat BT BIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB Kt 18 4,024,459 2,067,728
Deposits placed for life insurance HTASREBREFAN
policies Ze 20 7,746,484 7,526,068
Deferred tax assets EEMIREE 21 2,056,504 2,233,910
13,827,447 11,827,706
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables g5 N H e FIE 22 46,504,347 52,370,304
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIEITER 23 4,962,271 15,896,023
Income tax refundable AR O] FTiS AR 692,172 =
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHH 23 34,576,349 35,899,808
86,735,139 104,166,135
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 & E b FE 5IR 24 42,473,654 41,610,134
Amount due to ultimate holding JFET B AR YRR A RIFRIB
company 25 1,657,151 -
Obligations under finance lease BB E AE 26 302,931 352,644
Income tax payable FETFRS R - 926,649
Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE — A EHE 27 16,711,730 19,333,599
61,145,466 62,223,026
Net current assets REEEFE 25,589,673 41,943,109
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAERE 39,417,120 53,770,815
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Obligations under finance lease BE M &R IE 26 130,217 203,696
Net assets EEFH 39,286,903 53,567,119
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital RRAN 28 4,000,000 4,000,000
Reserves 1 30 35,286,903 49,567,119
Total equity A 39,286,903 53,567,119

FI2RIVEMNGRET B REBHESS
201556 829 B # M B A - I A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 139
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by: TA+REZZ:
Liu Dan Ho Ying Choi
Liu Dan e Bt
Director Director
EF EF

Annual Report 2014/15
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LG 2PN 1
Share Share  Share option Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits reserve Total
Note 3006)(i) Note 30(6)i) - Note 30(b)i)
k& RGEE BRERE  AHEE  REEW L At
HEE30)0)  BEE300N)  ATEE300)i)
Note HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it B B AL AL BT BT B
At 1 April 2013 R2013E4A1R 4,750,108 - - - 15700683 15,700,683 20,450,791
Arising from the RERREE
reorganisation 28(b)  (4,750,108) - - 4,750,108 - 4750,108 -
Capitalisation issue EXI RN 28(e) 3,000,000  (3,000,000) - - - (3,000,000) =
Placing of shares RERR 28(f) 1,000,000 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000 33,000,000
Expenses incurred in ARERNESE L
connection with the 53
placing of shares - (4912,053) = = - (4912,053) (4,912,053)
Profit and total ERgfRZAUAES
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 5028381 5028381 5028381
At 31 March 2014 and R201453R31AR
1 April 2014 2014F4A1R 4,000,000 24,087,947 - 4750,108 20,729,064 49,567,119 53,567,119
2014 final dividends paid ~ EF2014ERBRE 3 - - - - (20,000,000) (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
Recognition of share-based ~ BERELURB 058
payments 3 - - 145,360 - - 745,360 745,360
Profit and total EREARZENALE
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 4974424 4974424 4974424
At 31 March 2015 R2015£3A31H 4,000,000 24,087,947 745360 4,750,108  5,703488 35,286,903 39,286,903

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ll_\éiﬁﬁ)ﬁl%%

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$ HK$
HiaE AT BIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax B A5 A v 7,294,015 7,619,570
Adjustments for: M TINSHEELFAE
Listing expenses EmHEX — 6,529,809
Depreciation of property, plant and M WERREITE
equipment 1,214,263 1,418,751
Interest income MEHA (291,100) (245,464)
Premium charged on life insurance AERER R B TR
policies (=] 69,294 280,199
Finance costs &R 658,207 1,104,542
Equity-settled share-based payments — FZARHEAEE LAR D S+
K E 745,360 -
Operating cash flows before movements “4EEZE TS BAIMNELER
in working capital ERE 9,690,039 16,707,407
Movement in working capital LEEGTILEY
elements:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 & E b U FRIE
other receivables w,/ () 5,865,957 (868,217)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N E MR kIR
payables =yl 863,520 3,588,718
Increase in amount due to ultimate BN RAIER A A
holding company TRIALZ N 1,657,151 503,716
Cash generated from operations REEEZHRS 18,076,667 19,931,624
Interest paid 2T E (629,040) (1,062,056)
Finance lease charges paid ENBEEEST L (29,167) (42,486)
Income tax paid EATTER (3,761,006) (2,051,495)
Net cash from operating activities BRETHAESRSFE 13,657,454 16,775,587
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHFESHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of property,  WHEW% - BE L&
plant and equipment H A 5K 36 (2,869,996) (442,731)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank  BERRITEFRL
deposits (3 m) 10,933,752 (229,588)
Payment of deposits placed for life HASRBREFAH
insurance policies B - (3,748,955)
Interest received 2 & 1,390 3,052
Net cash from/(used in) investing REEEFE, (FTA)
activities BEEEE 8,065,146 (4,418,222)

Annual Report 2014/15 7 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n_\éiﬁrﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERASRE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid BRI E (20,000,000) -
Decrease in amounts due from JiE U A BSE  R] SRIR
related parties Np e - 15,371,221
Decrease in amount due to a related  JEfT—% @5 5 FUA
party B -  (6,186,686)
B —RESEHIE
Decrease in amount due to a director NoRAR - (437,235)
Repayments of bank loans BIBRITER (3,525,744) (12,394,229)
Proceeds from placing of shares i & IR {9 P15 518 - 33,000,000
Expenses incurred in connection with FECERDELZ
the placing of shares A Sz - (4,912,053)
Repayments of loans to directors EEESEXR — 6,081,968
Repayments of obligations under EEREHEETHN
finance lease "1 (424,190) (388,194)
Payment of listing expenses ST EmHE - (5,089,359)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BEEE (FTA) g
activities REFE (23,949,934) 25,045,433
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH IR&KkE£EEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRLA), B 58 (2,227,334) 37,402,798
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRERELEED
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 34,767,436 (2,635,362)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRRELRESZEY
END OF THE YEAR 32,540,102 34,767,436
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReMREEEBYMHIT
EQUIVLENTS
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHEER 23 34,576,349 35,899,808
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 27 (2,036,247)  (1,132,372)
32,540,102 34,767,436

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15 August 2012 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
located at 22/F, Blink Building, No. 111 Bonham Strand,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11
October 2013 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of property
management services. The details and particulars of
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 19 to
the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
March 2015, Wiser Capital Management Limited, a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, is the
ultimate parent and Mr. Liu Dan is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company.

—REH

AR alA—BR2012948 A15H £ A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which in collective
term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which concern
the preparation of financial statements, which for the
comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note
5 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2014 consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year had no significant effects on the results
and financial position of the Group for the current and
prior years.

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The following standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

This amendment clarifies that the right of set-off
must not be contingent on a future event. It must
also be legally enforceable for all counterparties in
the normal course of business, as well as in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
amendment also considers settlement mechanisms.
The amendment did not have a significant effect
on the Group financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(c)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation as from the Company’s
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The impact of the change in the
Companies Ordinance is unlikely to be significant
and only the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be affected.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1
April 2014:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception*

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations*
Amendments to Disclosure initiative*
HKAS 1

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HKFRS 14

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants*

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Equity method in separate
financial statements?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts #

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

% Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014, with limited exceptions.

permitted.

Earlier application is
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing, where
applicable, the potential effect of all new and revised
HKFRSs that will be effective in future periods but
is not yet in a position to conclude whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these financial statements is set
out below.

4.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 4.1 #HREMRE (E)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is obtained by the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary determined on the date when control
is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated amounts in other comprehensive
income.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of a subsidiary is accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Groups’ entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is the Group’'s and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Foreign currencies (continued)

(iij) Translation on consolidation

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. BEXEFBE(E)

4.2 HNEE(4E)
(i) #ZEIREBFHBRE

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in the profit or loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost less impairment loss of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvement 20%
Furniture and fixture 10%
Motor vehicle 30%
Office equipment 25%

The residual values, and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
recognised in the profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.4

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
except receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position when and only when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Loans and other receivables 4.6 EXRREMEWTIE

Loans and other receivables including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash
and bank balances are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are not held
for trading are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would
be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are
stated at cost, less allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition over the
period to maturity. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when an
increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables
at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7

4.8

4.9

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

—  the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the
guarantee contracts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Trade and other payables

4.11

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterialy in which
case they are stated at cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the drawn-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn-down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after end of
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.13 Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Taxation (continued)

4.13 Fi1E (#8)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences arising
on such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
paternity/maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

Defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employee’s basic salaries. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
this plan is limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Employee benefits (continued) 414 EEBR(E)

(iv) Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments under the Employment
Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method and discounted to its present
value and after deducting the fair value of any
related assets, including those retirement
scheme benefits.

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flow estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

4.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and the costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Property management services income

Revenue from property management services
are recognised when services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.
Revenue from the provision of other supporting
services for the management of the property
is recognised when the services are rendered.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time basis
using the effective interest method.

4.17 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Leasing (continued)

417 HE (&)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating leases payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

4.18 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Bank balances in client accounts

419 REFIRF BT

Certain bank accounts were opened and held in
the name of a subsidiary of the Group on behalf
of some customers. Such bank accounts are
regarded as client accounts held on behalf of third
parties and are not recognised as assets and
associated liabilities in the financial statements of
the Group.

4.20 Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered
services in exchange for shares or rights over
shares. The cost of such transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value
of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions of the transactions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the years in which the vesting conditions are
to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to
vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged / credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
reserve within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.20 Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured at
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where the fair value cannot be reliably estimated,
in which case they are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the
fair value is measured at the date the Group obtains
the goods or the counterparty renders the services
and is recognised an expense.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4 to the financial statements,
management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on past experience, expectations of the future
and other information that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods of the revision
affect both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting
period.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

5.1

5.2

6.8

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are certain
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to
directors and consultants is determined at the grant/
measurement date. In assessing the fair value of
the share options, the generally accepted option
pricing model was used. The option pricing model
requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the expected dividend yield and expected
life of options and etc. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of
the fair value of the share options. Equity-settled
share-based payments of approximately HK$745,360
(2014: Nil) had been recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

5. At FREEMNEZRR(E)

5.1

5.2

5.3

Y3 BE KR A E A F 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes the obligations under finance lease and
bank borrowings as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, net of cash and bank balances, and equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. The Group considers the cost of
capital and risk associated with each class of capital,
and will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, repayment of amount due to
ultimate holding company, issuance of new shares as
well as the raising of new debts.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that
for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
The Group receives reports from the share registrars
regularly on substantial share interests showing the non-
public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance
with the 25% limit since the Listing. As of 31 March
2015, 25% of the Company’s shares are in public hands.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €@ITH
7.1 Financial instruments by category 71 ERMIANSE
Categories of the Group’s financial instruments at AEEREREHRNem I A
the end of reporting period are as follows: DEWT -
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: TREE
Loans and receivables ER KW EIE
(including cash and cash (BRiEREREE
equivalents): EBY):
Deposits placed for life insurance MAERBEREFA
policies Mz e 7,746,484 7,526,068
Trade and other receivables ZBo N HMmEWZIE 45,518,979 51,504,398
Pledged bank deposits EHEAIRITER 4,962,271 15,896,023
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTH R 34,576,349 35,899,308
Financial liabilities: cHas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: IR $HEKANHEN S R
BfE:
Trade and other payables B NREMEMKIE 42,473,654 41,610,134
Amount due to ultimate holding JE B AR A A
company B 1,657,151 -
Bank borrowings - secured RITEE - FEM 16,711,730 19,333,599

Annual Report 2014/15
2014/15F % 103



104

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

7.2 Financial risk management and fair values

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i)

(ii)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as the Group’s deposits placed
for life insurance policies are denominated in
United States dollars (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to
foreign currency fluctuation is limited as long
as the HK$ remains pegged to the US$. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2014.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and trade and other
receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk,
as trade receivables from the five largest
debtors of the Group as at 31 March 2015
accounted for 11.4% (2014: 12.3%) of total
trade receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
services are provided to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and
bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF

7. SRMITA(E)
7.2 BXERBREERAAE
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R EREER RN RmISH
ARIFERIE K = I%$EIWW
BRI EBEDNE ER

1K °
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7.2 Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile

B ISR AR AL

ERMIA(E)
7.2 MREAREERDAEE)

(iii) FEE LR

AEBBUR AT HEZE B A
LIEMHRBEEHE K A
EREGR TRR TR -

NERNERERARBEST

AEESRBENARMKEAD

of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: FIAEARRAEE AT ¢
On demand More than Total
or 1 year hut Contractual
within less than Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years cash flow Amount
REXY BBIE  CTNRER
—ER BERSE  REREAE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B B
2015 20155
Trade and other payables  EZ REMEFFE 42,473,654 - 42,473,654 42,473,654
Bank loans subject to a MEEERERER
repayment on demand BREHBITERR
clause and overdrafts EX 16,711,730 - 16,711,730 16,711,730
Amount due to ultimate B RAERAR
holding company M 1,657,151 - 1,657,151 1,657,151
Obligations under finance ~ RMEBERNE
lease 314,265 133,875 448,140 433,148
61,156,800 133,875 61,290,675 61,275,683
On demand More than Total
or 1 year but Contractual
within less than Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years cash flow Amount
RESH BBIE  BIORER
—FHR BERSE  HeREas REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B
2014 2014F
Trade and other payables ~ EAREMERNFE 41,610,134 - 41,610,134 41,610,134
Bank loans subject to a MEAEREXER
repayment on demand BRMBITETR
clause and overdrafts BY 19,333,599 - 19,333,599 19,333,599
Obligations under finance ~ MEAMEAHE
lease 373,032 207,165 580,197 556,340
61,316,765 207,165 61,523,930 61,500,073
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

7.2 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
mainly arises from its bank borrowings. These
items bear interest at variable rates varied with
the then prevailing market condition.

It is estimated that a general increase/
(decrease) of 50 basis points in interest rate,
with all other variables held constant, would

7. ©RIA(E)

7.2 BBEBEERERAAEE)

(iv) FIZRE kR

AEEEBAT ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“
EENFERR %EE
REBNEGTE ﬂTi
Hﬂ‘ rD /Rﬁﬁ/:E ©

15 BT A5 E {5 8 e 45 1 2
WERT - i RIEEE
3%4Tm)mﬂﬁ% A

have (decreased)/increased the Group’s profit ErFRNRF L)/ 18
for the year as follows: T
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Increase/(decrease) in interest rate  FZE F# (T #)
50 basis points 501EF 2L (83,559) (96,668)
(50) basis points (50) fE £ 24 83,559 96,668
(v) Fair values (v) RRE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group currently operates in one operating segment
which is property management services. A single
management team reports to the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker who allocates resources and assesses
performance based on the consolidated result for the
year for the entire business comprehensively. Accordingly,
the Group does not present separate segment information.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services
is set out in note 9 below. No customer accounted for
10% or more of the total revenue for the years ended
31 March 2015 and 2014.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA
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10.

11.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

During the two years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
all revenue is derived from customers in Hong Kong and
the Group’s non-current assets as at 31 March 2015

and 2014 are all located in Hong Kong.

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
property management services. An analysis of the Group’s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

8. ZEEHR (M)

9. Wz

revenue recognised during the years is as follows:

H E2015%F 201463 A31H (F M 1A
FE FBREHRBEEERES MR
2015% &2014F3A31H  AEEH
EMEBEELMREE -

AEETERSRHEMEEERS -
FAREENEEAWAITAT :

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision of property management services IR{t¥% %8 RS 339,721,845 324,981,419
OTHER REVENUE 10. Hblz=s
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1,390 3,052
Interest income from deposits placed for FtAZRBIREF AR
life insurance policies e mF B U A 289,710 242 412
Sundry income HMIEIA 58,750 33,838
349,850 279,302
FINANCE COSTS 1. BEKRR
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: Y B IEMFE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAFABEEER
within five years RITEE 629,040 1,062,056
Finance lease charges BEMEER 29,167 42 486
658,207 1,104,542
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

12.

13.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging the following:

12. BRBLATR R

BRBL AT A T HIRR T 5IE B

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 500,000 573,504
Depreciation of property, plant and W% BB RZRETE
equipment (note 18) (B1aE18) 1,214,263 1,418,751
Equity-settled consultancy fees RIREEENBERE R 116,160 -
Legal and professional fees FEREEEA 5,111,092 1,545,531
Operating lease rentals in respect of FRHEMENKLEAE
premises 2,727,837 1,976,270
Staff costs including directors’ BIRAN(BEESZHH)
remuneration (note 15) (H1at15)
— salaries, wages and other benefits —%e TENREMEN 280,909,792 264,976,482
— equity-settled share-based payments —IRREEE ARG,
SANEOINE S 629,200 -
— contributions to retirement benefit — [MERRAE I FHEIH K
scheme 9,173,858 9,107,107

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable

13. BB

FRNBEANEGHOBRBEMGTERR
i F1%216.5% (20144 : 16.5%) fEH

profits during the year. R o
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
7T BT
Current income tax BVEART 15350
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFEH
— Provision for the year — F N 2,191,964 2,911,317
— Over-provision in prior years — BT FEHBERE (49,779) (108,522)
2,142,185 2,802,795
Deferred tax assets (note 21) BB EE (Hat21)
— Origination and reversal of —EREEN R R
temporary differences B[l 150,226 (244,225)
— Under-provision in prior years —BAEFERETE 27,180 32,619
Total tax charge for the year RNEEHIBF 2 B 2,319,591 2,591,189

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA




13.

14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation between the Group’s income tax expense
and accounting profit, at applicable tax rate is set out
below:

. FriERip < (&)

AEEZERRENAENAX RS
R B ERRE SN T

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before tax B A5 AT 4 ) 7,294,015 7,619,570
Notional tax on profit before tax, ZERAIRE16.5%EH
calculated at current tax rate of 16.5% BRESADE M B EHIE
(2014: 16.5%) (2014% : 16.5%) 1,203,512 1,257,229
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HUR A ST R A 2 1,190,166 1,548,114
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue T 78 i Y e A T TR 7 22 (51,488) (138,251)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBRERE (49,779) (108,522)
Temporary differences not recognised in  WERIBE FEE R
prior years TR =R 27,180 32,619
Income tax expense FriSfim X 2,319,591 2,591,189
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF|
Basic earnings per share BREXBR

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the consolidated
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$4,974,424 (2014: HK$5,028,381) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
400,000,000 (2014: 374,123,288) in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share

The effects of the Company’s outstanding share options
as at 31 March 2015 do not give rise to any dilution
effect to the earnings per share.

$/ A ANELEEREARBH THREAR

NREB AELRFALE H 4,974,424
# T0(20144F : 5,028,381/ 7L ) K F
B 31T T @ AR I T35 20400, ooo ,0008%
(20144 : 374,123,288/%):t&

FREBERZT

R2015F3A31B KA Al M ARIT{FEE
A& #E 2 52 BN 4 Y I IR 2 ) 7 AR AR
%"%E/;ﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15. EEREEF N
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) ESHM
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each BN ENAARSESHNFH M
director of the Company are as follows: E3- N
2015 20154
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Directors’  and other  Share-based henefits
fee benefits payments scheme Total
i HBB  mEtkEN
Exmd HMER XANRE pEas &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT B
Executive directors: BITES:
Ho Ying Choi o)) - 2,150,007 - 17,500 2,167,507
Ho Ying Cheung (i) fER - 1,706,633 - 14,768 1,721,401
Liu Dan (i) Liu Dan - 470,968 - - 470,968
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy (iy MEZX - 213,214 314,600 3,000 590,814
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien (i) RBK - 145714 314,600 3,000 463,314
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Shum Lok To (iy SR 21,322 94,613 - 4,731 120,666
Kam Tak Yeung (i) &B%F 107,893 = = = 107,893
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Bai Jin Rong (iy H&E 18,214 - = = 18,214
Chow Siu Lui (i) BIE 18,214 - - - 18,214
Tso Siu Lun, Alan (i) EZm 18,214 = = = 18,214
Cheung Kwong Wai (i) ®EE 107,893 = = = 107,893
Tong Sze Chung (i) ER 129,471 - - - 129,471
Wong Tsz Ho iy ETE 107,893 - - - 107,893
Tso Ping Cheong (i) ERE 41,307 - - - 41,307
So Chung Shing (i) BMHK 32,839 = = - 32,839
609,260 4,841,149 629,200 42,999 6,122,608
Notes: Hiazt -

(i) Resigned on 6 February 2015. Salaries and other benefits
in kind of approximately HK$342,000 paid to Ho Ying
Cheung after his resignation as a director since 6 February
2015 had not been included in the 2015 analysis above.

(ii)  Appointed on 6 February 2015.

(iii)  Resigned on 6 February 2015.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEMEEE (ER)BRAH

()  P2015F2H6HBHE-Fe R EMEY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15. EEREEFHFMN(E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEHEM(E)
2014 20144

Contributions

Salaries to retirement

Directors’  and other Share-based benefits

fee benefits ~ payments scheme Total

FER LBRNZN FWRHER
EEHS  EMER MR HERR A%

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT AT
Executive directors: WITEE:
Ho Ying Choi ] FE B - 1,836,850 - 15,000 1,851,850
Ho Ying Cheung AR - 1,826,163 - 15,000 1,841,163
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Kam Tak Yeung 2EE 56,774 120,000 - - 176,774

Independent non-executive ~ BIUIFFHTEE

directors:

Cheung Kwong Wai RHE 56,774 - - - 56,774
Tong Sze Chung ERR 68,129 = = = 68,129
Wong Tsz Ho IR 56,774 = = = 56,774

238,451 3,783,013 = 30,000 4,051,464

Annual Report 2014/15 1 1 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15. EERESH M (E)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2014: two) directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are included in note
15(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2014: three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

TfumEHMA L HMN

AEEMNANESHFMA LR
FEMZ(2014F : M%) AR A
B HEMFBEN LXME
15(a)c R N =4 (20145 : =%)
e dMA LM T

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
7T S IT

Salaries and other benefits e KHE g A

Discretionary or performance related B{EskRIBIE@IEAT
bonus

Contributions to retirement benefit MR AR FIET B 5K
scheme

The emoluments fell within the following band:

2,210,373 2,185,500

287,532 219,000

48,000 44,850

2,545,905 2,449,350

HFHNFTIEE

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
20154 20144
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,
none of the directors waived any emoluments during
the reporting period (2014: Nil).

ARmERENESEH A&
= 3 B\ = SR B - 4B R E A
BEARRE SN B R R RS IR
fE- g MEBEEENREH
(20144 « ) RETIH B -

16. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 16. ZDRER AR FE (B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE B),/BF
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the B E2015F3A31H L FE > AR A
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes e ARGEGESBEMNBREENRARA
a loss of HK$7,082,909 (2014: profit of HK$25,127,633) B %5 ¥R 7k B2 12 19 B 1R7,082,90978 7T
which has been dealt with in the financial statements (2014%F : % #25,127,633/87T) °

of the Company.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA



17.

18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group makes contribution to MPF Scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250
prior to June 2014) per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. BAREFREFE

AEBREBEDZBRHMERBEESFEIK
PIRMERBNEEREB MBS
AESFTEI([RESETE HR - ARE
EHRESFTENRADIBETF SR
TE%:TE(BNEIRARS S
51,500/ 7 (201446 A Al A&1,25078
7)) BEE-EFRI N T RESF SR
TEHEBFA-

18. MI%  -BERRE

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvement  and fixture  equipment vehicle Total
HENMELE GAREE BLAERE RE a5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Cost B
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4A1H 2,369,097 618,171 1924927 2714179 7,626,374
Additions NE 50,600 12,030 380,101 - 442,731
At 31 March 2014 and R2014%F3A31H &

1 April 2014 2014F471H 2419697 630,201 2,305,028 2,714,179 8,069,105
Additions wnE 1,489,860 1,071,053 309,084 300,998 3,170,995
Disposals HE = - - (128,809) (128,809)
At 31 March 2015 R201553A31H 3,909,557 1,701,254 2,614,112 2,886,368 11,111,291
Accumulated depreciation 25t E
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4A1H 1,665,013 310,875 1,390,275 1,216,463 4,582,626
Charge for the year FRHR 480,709 53,299 363920 520,823 1418751
At 31 March 2014 and R2014%3A318 &

1 April 2014 2014%471H 2,145,722 364,174 1,754,195 1,737,286 6,001,377
Charge for the year FRM 291,757 103,772 311,435 507,299 1,214,263
Written back on disposals & R E - - - (128,808) (128,808)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H 2,437,479 467,946 2,065,630 2,115,777 7,086,832
Carrying amounts BRE{E
At 31 March 2015 R2015%63A31H 1,472,078 1,233,308 548,482 770,591 4,024,459
At 31 March 2014 201453 H31H 273,975 266,027 550,833 976,893 2,067,728

As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s
motor vehicles held under finance leases amounted to
HK$770,591 (2014: HK$976,892) (note 26).

H2015F3[318 AEBREmMERAE
BAENSEMNRB@DESREA770,5918 T
(20144 : 976,892/ 7T )(H15t26)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

19.

20.

SUBSIDIARIES

19. KB A &

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEBARZEFBEET :
Particulars of Ownership interest
Place of issued and held by the Principal activities and
Name incorporation paid up capital  Company place of operation
BORME/  AARBEN
£B AT B L 3t B BARAFE BEAER IEXBREEHE
Kong Shum Union Property British Virgin 11 shares of 100% direct Investment holding
Management Group Limited Islands US$1.00 each
(“KSG")
BABENZEREEERLA HERELES 11 ER1.00%T 100%E % RERK
(TKSGJ) g
Kong Shum Union Property Hong Kong HK$22,000,000  100% indirect Provision of property
Management Company Limited management services in
("KSU") Hong Kong
BABENEERERAA B 22,000,000%7T  100%fE# RENEEBRE B8
([BREE])
K-King Cleaning Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Provision of cleaning services
(“K-King") in Hong Kong
HOB2RBERARESY) &S 100 7T 100% ¥ REFZRE BE
Q&V Security Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000 100% indirect Provision of security services
(“Q&v") in Hong Kong
BRZEHEERAR(BE]) B 2,100,000  100%fE# REURZRE BE

DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE 20. RASRBRREFANZESE

POLICIES
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits placed for life insurance policies FAAFRBRIREFA
MIEE 7,746,484 7,526,068

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

POLICIES (continued)

In June 2012, KSU, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance company
to insure an executive director of the Company. Under
the policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is KSU and
the total insured sum is US$1,632,000 (approximately
HK$12,677,376). At inception of the policy, KSU is
required to pay an upfront deposit of US$510,000
(approximately HK$3,961,680) including an expense
charge amounted to US$30,600 (approximately
HK$237,701). KSU can terminate the policy at any time
and receive cash refund based on the cash value of the
policy at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by
the upfront payment of US$510,000 plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the expense charged at
inception, the accumulated insurance charge and policy
expense charge (“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal
is made between the 1st and 15th policy year, there is
a specific amount of surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of 4.15%
per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy for
the first year. Commencing on the second year, a minimum
guaranteed interest of 2.5% per annum is guaranteed by the
insurance company. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, this
deposit placed for a life insurance policy was pledged to a
bank to secure bank facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

In July 2013, KSU entered into another life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure another
executive director of the Company. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and policy holder is KSU and the total insured
sum is US$1,200,000 (approximately HK$9,324,000). At
inception of the policy, KSU is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$482,491 (approximately HK$3,748,955)
including an expense charged amounted to US$28,949
(approximately HK$224,936). KSU can terminate the
policy at any time and receive cash refund based on the
cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal, which
is determined by the upfront payment of US$482,491
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the expense
charged at inception, the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge (“2nd Cash Value”). In addition,
if withdrawal is made between the 1st and 18th policy
year, there is a specific amount of surrender charge.

20. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE 20. RASERBREFANEZES

(%)
H20126F6 A - A D R EY I B 2 R

FEAE—ERER AR —MAS
REREURERRR —RBHRITE
E RBEZRE IR ARREFEA
BEREEE  MiBIRIREE /1,632,000
% T( 412,677,376 7T )e W B S
RERK BRBEAINENES
510,000 Jt( #13,961,680/& 7T ) &
¥ 59X 8 F30,6003% 7T (49237,7017%
TL) o ASIREE A P NI B R AR IEFZ IR
BERBEBEERBZREZEESEERK
138 € R - 1 TR IR FE I 50510,000
ETLRFTHRELZ 2505 B RN
REBEXNZALER RiRE
MMrEEZERAZ(REEE]D ME
Eo s WRREE—FEFETAF
RIR BEBTSEEARRAS -

F—F RRAFASRERGIRE
BERFB4.15% N H S T8 R
BB _FE RRABFIRERE
ZRBREFEFR2.5%FE 1
20144 k20133 H31H ' gt AFRR
RREFANZRSEFEER AR
RITETAKBIRITRE (Afat27)-

R2013F 78 - BiRE A EH—HRER
RARIM S — 1D ABRBRE LR
BARNAS —RBWITES - REZIR
B XaARREFEABS R
A AR RE A1,200,0003 T4
9,324,000/ 7T ) B S (R BB B -
A BTN RN ER£482,491% T
(#93,7489558 L ) EREFAXE M
28,9493 JT( #)224,93678 Jt ) & &
f65 AT AR B R AR L 3% AR B8 AR IR
RREZREZHESEAKDIR SR
Ko TI AR AR TE A 30482,491F T &
FTERER 2 25t 8 R F1R 7 SR B B
SRZAXEBR R RERRES
BREX((FE-HER<EBE)MET -
N WA REE—FEFE+/\FR
R BERTSBEEARRAX -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

20. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

POLICIES (continued)

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of 3.6%
per annum on the outstanding 2nd Cash Value of the
policy for the first year. Commencing on the second year,
a minimum guaranteed interest of 2% per annum is
guaranteed by the insurance company. As at 31 March
2014, the deposit placed on this life insurance policy
was pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities

20 MAERBREFANERS

granted to the Group (note 27).

The above deposits placed for two life insurance policies
are denominated in US$, a currency other than the
functional currency of KSU and expose the Group to

foreign currency risk.

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

21.

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognised by the Group:

(&)

F—F REAFRBRENBZE
BREEBEZFEL36%ZHFEFE
RS B FE  RIR AR BIRE
Ri& 2 IREBRIEFEFNE2% ZAFF 8
M2014F3A318 ° F It ASRBRIR
BEANZSE ERE AERRTT
BRI AEBHORITRE (H227)°

R MIBEASRREEFANZS
WETAHE T RERBAYEE
BIASNR B B - 3 AN ER B B S
}_ll/‘/\

EEBIREEE

AT RAEEERN T ZRIERIAE
E/(8fR):

Accelerated Decelerated

tax tax
depreciation depreciation  Provisions Total
DnEER 18 BRI
wE e B &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(Hzz)
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4/1H (168,689) 190,841 2,000,152 2,022,304
Credited to profit or loss for the year RFRFT AR
— origination and reversal of —EREENRIR
temporary differences KAl
(note 13) (Hf7£13) (14) 64,903 146,717 211,606
At 31 March 2014 and R2014F3A318 &
1 April 2014 20144 A1H (168,703) 255,744 2,146,869 2,233,910
Charged to profit or loss for the year RFAFHABEZE
- origination and reversal of -~ EREENRR
temporary differences R&E
(note 13) (HfiF13) (143,872) - (33,534)  (177,406)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H (312,575) 255,744 2,113,335 2,056,504

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF



21.

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

Note: Provisions represent the temporary differences of provision for
certain expenses (including long service payments, unrealised
annual leaves and bonuses) made in the financial statements of
the Group which would only be tax deductible when these
expenses are actually paid.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for the consolidated statements of financial
position purpose:

21, RERIEEE ()

Hret o BEIE AR B B TS AR A0 TR S
B (BRERHRES  RERFRE
BRACAERE) WEREERE - H(E
REBEXNZEFR & A EMS -

AR A MR R /IR TR IR 4
(REHR) DML

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Deferred tax assets B IEEE 2,056,504 2,233,910
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESRHAMEWFIE

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade receivables Z 5 W GIA 42,112,145 48,288,078

Deposits, prepayments and other B BRI REM
receivables JEWFRIA 4,392,202 4,082,226
46,504,347 52,370,304

The Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated
in HKS.

The Group does not grant credit terms to its customers
(2014: Nil). The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed by the directors regularly.

A 0 5 R A IR DA TE
sHE-

AEBIERAEXPRTEES
(20144 : #&) - RE B B ) B AR 1%
HAEERWKFIA - EFE B
HAkE SR °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

22. TRADE AND OTHER

22. ESREMBEWRIE(E)

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the

EXBHI A BE 5 RKRIA Z BRIk D

due date, is as follows: W -
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Overdue by: B HY

1-30 days 1Z=30H 27,356,487 27,976,719
31-60 days 31£60H 9,395,052 11,589,615
61-90 days 61%90H 2,457,666 2,947,035
over 90 days HiE90H 2,902,940 5,774,709
42,112,145 48,288,078

Trade receivables of

HK$42,112,145

(2014

HK$48,288,078) that were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there are no recent history of

default.

The breakdown of the Group’s deposits, prepayments

g 5 fE WK TE42,112,1455% (2014
F 48,288,078 L) E B HAE I I
WRRERE - B A E R &I
PRIEERENBIEP

AEBRIRE - AN AR H AU

and other receivable are as follows: KIBRYRAAALI R -
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Other receivables due from other parties ﬁ‘%ﬂ&ﬁ@/\iﬁ'\]ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ&

\ RIE 752,325 1,276,818
Deposits ?Tz(ﬁt 2,654,509 1,939,502
Prepayments TARTIE 985,368 865,906
4,392,202 4,082,226

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND

23. RERBITHERREERET

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS T
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash on hand RE 188,000 188,000
Bank balances RITHS 34,388,349 35,711,808
Cash and bank balances He MIRITER 34,576,349 35,899,808
Pledged bank deposits (Note) EERITFERA2E) 4,962,271 15,896,023

Note: Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014. Details of which are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

The Group’s cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are denominated in HK$.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The deposits are in HK$ and
at the interest rate of 0.01% to 0.1% (2014: 0.01% to
0.1%) as at 31 March 2015.

Hfat - BRI RITFE RIER2015F3A318 &
2014F3A31HEEB FIRIT 2 TR A
EAAEEERRITHENKRT -G
BRI A RE I 7E27 -

AREBZHE MIRITHESRAR S ET
RITERABTTEHE

BITHSEZ ARITERIERZ )28
FIRFTB - E TR BHR A —
HE 1% STAREEZNRR
S HERME - EKE R T HERF
K B - RITEBREEDERERETE
MW EE RS FEBRITZR
1T TFR BB R2015F3A31H A
F%&0.01%%0.1% (20144 : 0.01% =
0.1%)&H B e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B REAMBEAKIE

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade payables B Z N RIE 1,161,971 1,199,455

Building management deposits received EREFERZE 3,847,372 2,919,048
Sundry creditors and accruals (note a) H fth R BR K&

FEEHREB A (Kita) 32,266,298 31,347,993

Provision for long service payment (note b) REIRRTG & BE (Hatb) 5,198,013 6,143,638

42,473,654 41,610,134

The Group’s trade and other payables are denominated REENE S REMENKIBAATT
in HK$. FT{E -
The aging analysis of the trade payables were as follows: B S RENFIBENRESTAT
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0-30 days 0230H 1,161,971 1,199,455
Notes: Hiat -
(a)  The breakdown of sundry creditors and accruals are as follows: (a) EMEMNKIBEREGTERZAMNT
2015 2014
20154 201445
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Accrued staff cost and staff benefit FEFTIRE TRA KR B TEF| 18,091,763 17,321,639
Accrued staff bonus and annual leave FEEHE B LA RFR 7,610,081 7,035,696
Other accrued expenses HibEFHRA X 1,331,109 781,982
Other payables due to customers FERTE = B0 E fth FE T 5RIE = 793,654
Other payables due to other parties e Eo b A £ E fth A FRIE 5,233,345 5,415,022
32,266,298 31,347,993

1 20 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24. 85 R HENTIE (&)

Notes: (continued) HiaE - (&)
(b)  The movement of provision for long service payments is stated (b) EHBESRENSSHIINT
as follows:
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
At beginning of the year REA) 6,143,638 5,446,638
Provision made during the year FANEE 1,732,622 1,423,194
Paid during the year FARK (2,678,247) (726,194)
At end of the year RER 5,198,013 6,143,638
25. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 25. B BRAKERDRRE
COMPANY
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Wiser Capital Management Wiser Capital Management
Limited Limited 1,657,151 -
The amount due arose from certain payments on behalf BRRAKEE THRIBELE ZZEN
of the Group, is non-trade related, unsecured, interest- TIARIEE SR - EEA - B NI
free and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of EREZE BNFENEEEEER
the amount due approximates its fair value. FEEE -

Annual Report 2014/15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

27.

26. BIERERIE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments

lease payments

Amount payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years

inclusive

Less: Future finance charge

Present value of lease obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months
shown under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12

months

The Group’s motor vehicles are held under finance lease
(note 18). The lease terms are ranging from 3 to 5 years.
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

The above finance leases carry interest at the rate per

BMEMEE TRTFUE -
—FR
F_FEFREF

(BHEERMTE)

B ARRERX

HEAERE

A AR+ A
AN EIERE]

GImRBaE)

T AR ATH

A

annum of 2.18% to 5% (2014: 2.18% to 5%).

BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED

RERNAH BERNAFRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 2014 20155 20145
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
314,265 373,032 302,931 352,644
133,875 207,165 130,217 203,696
448,140 580,197 433,148 556,340
(14,992) (23,857) - -
443,148 556,340 433,148 556,340
(302,931) (352,644)
130,217 203,696

AEBETAEAREHE(HiE18)
A -HHAR/IELF - TAHENRE
FE R SR - W L AT T RET
SRk

L g EHE R FF KR2.18%E5%

(20144 : 2.18%FE5% )5t 2 °

27. RITEE-RFER

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Bank loans, secured IRITE  AEA 14,675,483 18,201,227
Bank overdrafts, secured RITES - HHEH 2,036,247 1,132,372
16,711,730 19,333,599

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF




27. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED (continued)

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

27. ITIEE - RBEAF (&)
RITEEROREES AT :

is as follows:
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank overdrafts RITEX 2,036,247 1,132,372
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —&FRZIHEERIEED R
within one year TER 8,653,085 9,506,150
Portion of bank loans due for repayment — — & 2| HAEE M A BN
after one year which contains a EEERNIDIRITE
repayment on demand clause £ 6,022,398 8,695,077
16,711,730 19,333,599

The Group’s bank borrowings were due for repayment

AEBEIMEENRITEENT ¢

as follows:
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Overdrafts repayable on demand BREREENES 2,036,247 1,132,372
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FAZHEERFLD
within one year RITEK 8,653,085 9,506,150
10,689,332 10,638,522
Bank loans due for repayment after one ~ —FERZIHEENRIT
year (Note) B (M)
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBER2FNR 3,230,129 5,463,354
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBBNSER 2,677,718 3,117,123
After 5 years SE1& 114,551 114,600
6,022,398 8,695,077
16,711,730 19,333,599

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates

Wit

set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any

repayment on demand clause.

FE SRR ENE R H PRI E R
TR B H - 3 AR (AT R B SRR 15K

B/ 48
KR 2 o

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

The above bank borrowings carry interest at the rate per annum
from 4.25% to 6.25% (2014: 4.25% to 6.25%).

RITEENREEAETIIE-

SR 1T R AR A KR4 25% =
6.25%(20144F : 4.25%%6.25%) =t
B o

o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

27. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED (continued) 27. $R{T1EE - EEF (&)

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by: AEBMRITHER NI ZFHEEK
-

(a) Pledge of deposits placed for life insurance (note (a) ERERASREREFANZS (A
20); 7$20):

(b) Pledge of the Group’s fixed bank deposits (note (b) ERAREEAEHRITHERH
23); i23):

(c) Pledge of properties and unlimited guarantee by (c) EHBEEQRINYERERIEE
related companies (note 32(c)(iii)); R (HtaE32(c)ii)) :

(d) Joint and several unlimited personal guarantees of (d) ESHMHARKRAE TERBEEALE
directors (note 32(c)(ii)); and ROHTE32(c)(ii)) + }

(e) Guarantees of Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation (e) BALRIBESFERATNREER
Limited and The Government of the HKSAR. FFYE B #E(R ©

As at 31 March 2015, the banking facilities granted to MR2015F3A31A BT A S EA IR

the Group are approximately HK$53.2 million (2014: 77 B4 & 495,320& /& JL(20144F : 49

approximately HK$55.9 million). 5,5858 7T ) °

As at 31 March 2015, approximately HK$25.7 million MR2015F3A831H " £J2,570& & T

(2014: HK$25.7 million) of the banking facilities have (20144 : #92,5708 % L) KR 1T @t

been utilised by the Group. BEEASEFHA-

1 24 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B4
Authorised and issued share capital EERERITRA
2015 2014
2015% 20145
Number of Number of
ordinary Nominal ordinary Nominal
shares Value shares Value
LERYA EHE LTERAA HfE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SAE{E0.01ETH
Authorised: EE
Upon incorporation (note () AT AR 2B (Bt (a)) - - 3,800,000  380,000.00
As at 1 April R4A1H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 - -
Subdivision of shares (note (c)) RO H(H ) - - 34,200,000 -

Increase during the year (nofe () EREI(HrE() -

4,962,000,000 49,620,000.00

As at 31 March m3A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000,000 50,000,000.00
Issued and fully paid: EERTRAE:
Upon incorporation (note (a)) AL (A (@) - - - -
As at 1 April R4A1H 400,000,000 4,000,000 1 0.10
Issue of shares on reorganisation ERRRITRG

(note (b)) (Bitb) - - 1 0.10
Subdivision of shares (note (c)) Ry ¥R (HEC) - - 18 -
Issue of shares upon: BTIIRABITRG -
Capitalisation issue (note (e)) BRMEBET(HZE) - - 299,999,980 2,999,999.80
Placing of shares (note (f)) RERm (i) - - 100,000,000 1,000,000.00
As at 31 March M3A31H 400,000,000 4,000,000 400,000,000 4,000,000.00

Annual Report 2014/15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

Notes: (a)

(c)

(d)

(f)

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

The Company was incorporated on 15 August 2012 in the
Cayman lIslands with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10
each, of which one share of HK$0.10 was allotted and
issued.

On 8 August 2013 pursuant to the reorganisation of the
Group for the Listing, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of KSG from Topgrow Holdings Limited
(“Topgrow”), the then ultimate parent of the Company, in
consideration of the allotment and issue of a total of 1
share, credited as fully paid up to Topgrow.

On 19 September 2013, every one share of the Company
of HK$0.10 was subdivided into ten shares of HK$0.01
each which resulted in the Company having an authorised
share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares
and an issued share capital of HK$0.2 divided into 20
shares held by Topgrow.

On 19 September 2013, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an additional
4,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 September 2013, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited by HK$2,999,999.80
as a result of the issue of placing shares pursuant to the
placing as mentioned and defined in (f) below, an aggregate
of 299,999,980 shares, by the way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$2,999,999.80 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, had been issued, allotted
and credited as fully paid at par to the shareholders as
appeared on the register of members of the Company at
close of business of 18 September 2013 (the “Capitalisation”).
Following the Capitalisation, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$3,000,000 divided into 300,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 11 October 2013, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by the way of placing at a price
of HK$0.33 per share (the “Placing Price”) for a total cash
consideration of HK$33,000,000, before issurance cost. The
excess of the Placing Price over the par value of the shares
issued was credited to the share premium account of the
Company.

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF

28. BRA (&)
EERTRITRA(E)

Hret

(a)

RAFIN2012F8 A 15 R EFR S B
S REM AL - 7 E B 7R £380,000
7 7T 9 733,800,000/% & i% [ &
0.1078 TRty - H e — IR &AL
1E0.10/8 TTHY A0 ERL 35 I 31T

M2013F8A8H  BIEALEE A L
M#EIT 2 E 4 N2 & [ Topgrow
Holdings Limited ([ Topgrow]) A2
A B 2 AR R A R UREEKSGHY
2 EE BT - (R (EA[A Topgrow
A3 R B 1T E L —IRAR (D ABRSI{E
B -

M20135F9A19R AR Al & —
RO.1I0B TR G HED & TIRE
B%0.0178 T M9 B 15 - A A 7]
B34 2 AR 2K 380,000/ 7T 2 &
38,000,0008% f& 17 + M E 1T AN
0.27% 7T 5 A208X Topgrow$F A #Y

BeA o

M2013F9A 198 AR AIFEIE R
4,962,000,000/% & A% H {H0.017%
T Z B dn - 50K TE B AN 380,000
& 7T3E 250,000,000/ 7T ©

M2013F9A 198 - FFARR AR H
i 1B BR B AR 18 T ()8 A it B2 5
FEZREHTRERNDMEER
2,999,999.807& L1 * LA AR Al
e f )4 (B BRAE AR TE 2,999,999.80
BILBAEAN TR - MR20134F
A IBHEXEHAERKBIIAR
AR A M AR BT R AL # A £
299,999,980/% A\ B Il VE &2 AR 19
(TEARE D BEREE AR
B #1778 /3,000,000 7T 5 &
300,000,0000% & #%0.017% 7T & ik

1/'\ ®

720134 10A11H + 100,000,000
AR ARE(E0.01 78 T HY B AR I 2%
7 TR RRFR0.3IJBITL 2 B
(TREEEDERES ReRER
4 /33,000,000 7T (R IRR 21T
ER) EEEBHERTROE
ENS BT ARR R ZBRIEE



COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

Statement of financial of position of the Company at the

29. ARRMBEFR

ZANYNNCTDiSE S N 0E B3 g

end of reporting period is set out below: N
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT B IT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KE—FHRBAF 4,750,108 4,750,108
Loan to a subsidiary (note a) ERT B R (Aita) 15,000,000 15,000,000
19,750,108 19,750,108
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Tﬁzi&ﬁﬁ 365,647 135,563
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) EHHEA IE(WED) 12,760,878 30,971,463
Bank balances RITREH 273 2.817,906
13,126,798 33,924,932
Current liabilities nEARE
Accruals et iR E . 214,889 674,458
Amount due to a subsidiary (note b) e —FMBARIKIE(MiEb) 3,943,292 -
Amount due to ultimate e B % ﬁ’& A
holding company 1,657,151 -
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE -REA 398,541 =
6,213,873 674,458
Net current assets RBEEZER 6,912,925 33,250,474
Total assets less current liahilities BEERRBERE 26,663,033 53,000,582
Net assets EEREH 26,663,033 53,000,582
Capital and reserve BEXK#E
Share capital N 4,000,000 4,000,000
Reserves (note c) @ (Hatc) 22,663,003 49,000,582
Total equity EREs 26,663,033 53,000,582

Approved by the board of directors on 29 June 2015

and were signed on its behalf by:

Liu Dan
Liu Dan
Director

EF

EEEN2015F6 29 /& - WHIA T A

TREREE

Ho Ying Choi
{7 & B

Director

BF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

the amount due is unsecured and interest-free and has no

fixed terms of repayment.

Wit -

(a)

RARHBEN (&)

PN R R EEAR - 8 R R [E R K

(b)  the amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (b) JERGRIBAEEE - 2B RIEEKE
demand. R o
(c) Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: (c) AREEBEEBHT :
Retained
Share profits/
Share option  Contributed (Accumulated
premium reserve Surplus losses) Total
note 30(b)(i) note 30(b)iii) note 30(b)(iv)
REEHN/
RIVEE BRERE SARR (RHER) Bt
B72300b))  BTaE300b)i)  BTE30(b)v)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 R2013%F4A1H = = = (4,965,106)  (4,965,106)
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREF K 2E A L%

for the year - - - 25127633 25,127,633
Issue of shares on reorganisation SRBBITRG (H1:228(b))

(note 28(b)) - - 4,750,108 - 4,750,108
Capitalisation issue (note 28(e)) BB (H13#28(e)) (3,000,000) - - - (3,000,000
Placing of shares (note 28(f) RO EE (H12#28(1) 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
Expenses incurred in connection with —~ RIRMEEELRFX

the placing of shares (4,912,053) - - - (4912,053)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H 24,087,947 - 4,750,108 20,162,527 49,000,582
At 1 April 2014 R2014F481H 24,087,941 - 4,750,108 20,162,527 49,000,582
2014 dividends paid 20145E/KRE - - - (20,000,000) (20,000,000
Equity-settled share-based payments RREEE ARG X FHRE - 745,360 - - 745,360
Loss and total comprehensive income for FREER 2 HE KA BLE

the year - - - (7,082,909) (7,082,909)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3831H 24,087,947 745,360 4,750,108  (6,920,382) 26,663,033

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

30. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and after deduction
of capitalisation issue and issuance costs of
shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregated
amount of issued capital of KSG, KSU, K-King
and Q&V as at 31 March 2013, the date on
which the aggregated issued capital was
reallocated to merger reserve after the Group’s
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to directors
and consultants of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
4.20 to the financial statements.

(iv) Contributed Surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the consideration of
KSG over the nominal value of 1 share issued
by the Company at the date on which it was
acquired by the Company pursuant to the
Group reorganisation for the Listing.

30. f#fE

(@ *=KH

AEBERENSRREPNED
ERAEE MEMEERER R

=
ma

EEEHRAZT -

(b) REENHEERTRE
(i) BREGEE

(ii)

REBRSEERRNE AR
Al R (ER B Al D
KT AR BIR - HEERRE
A IKIE B BR - KA E]
BAEENEEENBEEH
BIERCHHZER-

B e (B AR IRIER & AR A D
E{E 2 BIE%TG - W
FRE AT KA BT
RIREE 28 e

B OHRE

Ao REEIEN2013F3 A31
BKSG - B RBA - H K
BRZERTRAZES
B -mEmims RZzB L
MR BENAEE 2 E48
BEEMOREAHEE-

(iii) FERERE

BREMRERER T ARAE
=R 2 RITEBBREZ
L DAETR S/
H IR IR I 75 R Y 7E4. 2031
UARE g8 48 B DAL /5 ZE B A
MR 2 & BORFER ©

(iv) BAZE

KRB ABBRIERAR
AIRE LT MmN EBEEAR
ETWEE R KSGRER
BARRAD BTGB
BREER °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

31.

32.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
March 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period. (2014: HK$20,000,000
final dividend of HK5 cents per share)

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

In addition to the related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions and

31. KR

P57

balances with its related parties during the year/at the T

end of reporting period:

32. A R 5Z R AaER

HE2015F3A31 B L FEMES
FTARE  AREHRTEEZZTARK
B (20144 : 20,000,000 7T K EA PR B &

BRI s R A a0 R < AR 77
R JEEHIN REEEEFE TR
FR/REHRZEAR S KA

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
(a) Balance with a related party RRE S MR
— Amount due to ultimate holding — BN & AEIER A RIFIE
company — Wiser Capital
— Wiser Capital Management Management
Limited Limited 1,657,151 _
(b) Related parties transactions RELTR5
(i) Rental expenses paid to a (i) MEEEQRZTAY
related company ik
— More Rise Investment —AARERR
Limited (“More Rise”) ~El(RAED 276,000 252,000
(ii) Directors (i) EF
— Compensation of key —TETEBAEBYZ
management personnel [0 6,122,608 4,051,464

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

32. RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Guarantees

(i)  As of 31 March 2014, KSU had guaranteed a
term loan with outstanding amount of HK$8.7m
as at 31 March 2014 obtained by Fortune
Trend Investment Limited (“Fortune Trend”),
a related company of the Company. The
aforementioned guarantee had been released
during the year ended 31 March 2015 (note
35(a));

(ii) At 31 March 2014 and 2015, Mr. Ho Ying Choi
and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, directors of the
Company (Mr. Ho Ying Cheung resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 6 February
2015 and remain as a director of KSU as at 31
March 2015) had provided joint and several
unlimited personal guarantees in favour of
banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
within the Group (note 27);, and

(iii) At 31 March 2014 and 2015, More Rise and
Fortune Trend had provided unlimited guarantees
and pledged of their properties to secure banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries within
the Group (note 27).

Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung are the
directors of Fortune Trend and More Rise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the aforementioned guarantees given by the related
parties as set out in note 32(c)(i), 32(c)(ii) and 32(c)
(iii) constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules but fully
exempted pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the Company has fulfilled with the relevant
requirements.

32. EBA RS (M)

(c) ¥R

(i) EZE2014%F3A318 &%
AT A EREBRAR
([HEINEARAHNEERD
A) ) R2014%43A318 BB
MEHERREER HE
KREERIEA70B BT
At ERE R E E2015%F
3RA31B I FEWBR(H
35(a)):

(i)  F2014F K%2015F3A318
A FERS S A R AT FERE SR A (35
RANFIES  [AEELAER
20152 H6 A B E AR Al
TEE WHREE201543A
JIHEBEETEFHENE
E)ARTFAKERE A TH
BARMIRITEERXEA
REHARKE TERBEBEA
BR(ME27): *

(i) 720145 201543 A31H -
AARFTERRBRTALE
EETETHBRRARTT
2 S AR PR BB AR A4
HEMR(Hat27)-

T RE BT 56 t B R 26 2 R FHE TR
AHES -

RABESZAWHFEI2(c)() ~ 32(c)
(i) X B E32(c) i) Fr it B 38 5 fe it 2
P EREKAIZER ETARRIE20E
FIAEZ HERER ZBRBEEIER
W AIEE20.8815 & 2 HE R - AKX
A RIEBFHEBEAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

33. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases,

33. MAHENE

R|EMR AAHBELLEHOERT
B R SR ER AR A A0 15 SRAR BRI LA T By

which fall due as follows: BI|Hf -
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FA 2,268,500 2,215,800
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF(BRE
HEMF) 456,477 1,608,000
2,724,977 3,823,800

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated
for term of one to two years and rentals are fixed over
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 19 September 2013, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
whereby the board of directors is authorised to grant share
options to any employee, adviser, consultant, service
provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture partner
of the Company or any subsidiary (including any director
of the Company or any subsidiary) who is in full-time or
part-time employment with or otherwise engaged by the
Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option
is granted to such employee, adviser, consultant, service
provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture partner
or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group as incentive
or reward for their contribution to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
commencing from the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 19 September 2013) until the termination
date as provided therein which being the close of
business of the Company on the date which falls ten
years from the date of the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 18 September 2023).

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus of the
Company dated 30 September 2013.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA

REMHNFTIEAEEREE THA
ERNNEES -HEENHLS—EM
Fo-mEASEHAESREE X AEE

BAB D 32 4 BV R
BRESHE ZBREE

M20135F9H 190 - R ARIEHRMA—IE
BT EI([BEsTEl ) Bt &
FERRER AR A AL E A A
H IR & - wE R - B - IR
fem R FP  BHAEERH (8
BARBREMMBARNES )KL
BREARBRD MRZEES -
AR R R ER KRB
P BHAGLEHIETSLEDE
RABEL A EHAEEEL BRI
EMA LR LERER - FELRRA
NCIE AR CIL NSNS 23 4
S AE M7 AR - 7t 5B sk 88
BREUAREEELNER

34.

e

BRETE e R ES R KM B H
(BN201349 8198 ) E %t EIFTR
R B E - BDEE AR RE T B3R 4 B HA
#Etm T4 2 B (B12023F9A818H )
ARV EEBREERAIEER AR -

B ST 8100 E 2R A2 7]
H 8 /20139 A30H #Y 1B IR = 12 Mt
8500 [ Fe AR &I | —&iA



On 6 February 2015, the board of directors resolved to
grant 20,000,000 share options to certain executive
directors and consultants of the Group pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, to subscribe for shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$1.09 per option.
The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

34. BARAD > AFBVRRIE (4])
BEREAE 2 BRET 8 (F)

was HK$0.99 and the life of the share options is three

years.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

R2015F2H6H  EF 2 H R IBEE
IZAE 5T 21 % H20,000,00015 BE P 4 ¥
RRARBETHITES RER - IR
FESHHERELIE TREAR A
By BEEREEREEBARR
P& 7 #9 U T (& 720.997%8 Tt » i B8 AR 4
MEHE=F-

BRENSEDEABOD

Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  No. of share options
HK$ outstanding
ARA RiAH ERH s L R THE
BT BREHA
Executive directors
B1E3
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy 6 February 2015 (A) N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09 200,000
5 February 2018
NEE 20152 A6H(A) TR 2015F2A6B 2 1.09 200,000
2018%2A5H
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien 6 February 2015 (A) N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09 200,000
5 February 2018
B 2015%2A6H(A) TR 2015F2A6B 2 1.09 200,000
2018%2A5H
Executive directors
B8R
Shen Ka Yip, Timothy 6 February 2015 (B) 6 February 2015t0 30 June 2015 to 1.09 3,800,000
29 June 2015 5 February 2018
NEZ 2015%2A6H(B) 2015F2A6HZE 201556A30R% 1.09 3,800,000
2015F6A29H 2018%2A5H
Lai Sze Yau, Vivien 6 February 2015 (B) 6 February 2015t0 30 June 2015 to 1.09 3,800,000
29 June 2015 5 February 2018
RE 201552768 (B) 015%2A6HE  2015¥6A30RZE 109 3,800,000
2015F6A29H 2018%2A5H
Consultants 6 February 2015 (C) N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09 600,000
5 February 2018
B 2015F2R6H(C) TEH 2015F2A6BZE 1.09 600,000
2018%2H5H
Consultants 6 February 2015 (D) N/A 30 June 2015 to 1.09 11,400,000
5 February 2018
e 20152 A6H(D) Tam 2015F6A308 % 1.09 11,400,000
2018%2A5H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March

2015 are set out below:

34. BARAD > AFBVRRIE (4])
BRESE 2 BIRETE (&)

PR2015F3 A31 H &Y (& A& 17 155 B A% #E
=S

2015
20154
Weighted
Number of average
options exercise price
HnEFg
RERRES B 118
HK$
BT
Outstanding at the beginning of the year  FHIRARITE - -
Granted during the year FRFRT 20,000,000 1.09
Outstanding at the end of the year FREARITE 20,000,000 1.09
Exercisable at the end of the year FRA] T1T1E 1,000,000 1.09

No share option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed

during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA

HZE2015F3 8310 It FEHEBER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

34.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives for
their services to assist the Group expanding its business
network and exploring new business opportunities. The
fair values of such benefit could not be measured reliably
and as a result, fair values of share options are measured
by reference to the fair values at the measurement date.

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 6
February 2015 are determined by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent professional valuer using the
Binomial model. The estimated fair values and significant
inputs into the model are as follows:

LA 42 32 Y BRI (4]
BEREAE 2 BRET 8 (F)

[F) JEA ] 4% 12 B AR T VB /R IR SF 1 B AR
SEEAEXRBBELBEREEN
FHE R - R ZENZARED
REEAISERTE HBRBZAAEDNS
ENFTERRZAREE-

M2015%F2 A6 H % 1 /Y 58 I #E A0 1
AR ETY BB BEGEMSET
HARARKRA —_EBEBAEXNETF %
BN E AR EREARASEN
—|? :

Share options grant date

R L B

6 February 6 February 6 February 6 February

2015 (A) 2015 (B) 2015 (C) 2015 (D)

2015% 2015%F 2015%F 2015%F

2R6H(A) 2A6H(B) 2A6B(C) 2R6H(D)

Option price model HETERELN Binomial Binomial Binomial Binomial

eLF: ZBs ZBEs b -F:¥

Estimated fair value at REERAMWMEIDAE  HK$77.440 HK$1,471,360  HK$116,160 HK$2,207,040

the measurement date 774405870 147136087 116,160 2,207,040% T

No. of options granted B ERES E 400,000 7,600,000 600,000 11,400,000

Weighted average exercise price T H{THEE HK$1.09 HK$1.09 HK$1.09 HK$1.09

1.09%87T 1.09%7T 1.09%7T 1.09%7T

Expected volatility® TAHRIEY 35.98% 35.98% 35.98% 35.98%

Expected life® BHFH 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years

3% RES 3F 3%

Risk-free rate® BN 0.72% 0.72% 0.72% 0.72%

Expected dividend yield® EHR B R 4.59% 4.59% 4.59% 4.59%
Notes: BtaE -

W Expected volatility was determined by reference to the volatilities W FEHRR 2 EBEARRRERITEL

of companies operating in the same industry as the Company.

2 The expected life used in the model is the duration of the option

life.

@ Risk-free rate adopted in the model was based on the yield of

HK$ Hong Kong Sovereign Curve.

@ The historical dividend yield of the Company’s stock is used to
estimate the future dividend yield of the stock during the option

validity period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

Financial guarantees issued

Save as disclosed in note 32(c)(i) to the financial
statements, the Group had provided guarantee to
a bank in respect of a bank loan obtained by
Fortune Trend with an outstanding amount of
approximately HK$8.7 million as at 31 March 2014.
The financial liabilities in respect to the
aforementioned guarantee had not been recognised
as at 31 March 2014 as the amount was immaterial
to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The captioned financial guarantee to Fortune
Trend had been released as at 31 March 2015.

Performance bond and incorporated owners’
fund

Performance bond has been issued by several banks
as the Group maintains certain incorporated owners’
funds in the form of client accounts which were
held on trust for and on behalf of the incorporated
owners. These client accounts are not recognised
as assets and associated liabilities in the financial
statements of the Group. At the end of reporting
period, the Directors do not consider it probable
that a claim on the performance bonds will be made
against the Group.

As at 31 March 2015, the amounts of outstanding
performance bond was approximately HK$18.2
million (2014: HK$16.9 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of the
bank balances in the client accounts not dealt with
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is approximately HK$21.1 million (2014: HK$18.0
million).

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA

35. REE

(@

(b)

C 3 H M BRE

BTSRRI FE32(c) () TS
Hh REB B B ENR201453
A31BESMRITERMARITIE
HER - B R EERIBEL8708
B Pl E RN B EBRNK
MR201453F31 B ERR R
AZeBEEAEEREMEHRE
WAREK il FHEREER
BER2015F3 A31 B &R -

BHARBEREIVREIEES

ZRARTEELRORES R
AEAREBENEFPERP(AER
RETYRZEBEAFELA)
REBETERIUREZEES &
ERFRPIENANGE B 53
RERAF/EENRMEBEE -NH
TR EEZRRYAEEEL
BARE S REM AT A -

MR2015E3A310 k& & &
4 1R FE 2 # /18,200,000 JT
(20144 : 16,900,000/ 7T ) °

7201538318 it BEFRFR
RERAEBER A IEREREEN
RITHRE SRR S BEX9A21,100,00078
7T(2014% : 18,000,000/ 7T )



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

()

Legal cases

In carrying out the ordinary course of business, the
Group is subject to the risk of being named as
defendant in legal actions, claims and disputes in
connection with its business activities. The nature
of the legal proceedings initiated against the Group
generally include (i) claims for employees’
compensation by the Group’s employees: (ii) claims
for personal injury caused by the negligence of the
Group and owners’ corporations of the properties
by passers-by, residents or other users of the
respective properties; (iii) claims for property
damage or economic loss caused by the negligence
of the Group and owners’ corporations of the
properties by residents or other users of the
respective properties; and (iv) claims for property
damage caused by the negligence of individual flat
owners by other residents or users of the respective
properties. The Group maintains insurance cover
and, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
based on current evidence, any such existing claims
have no material financial impact to the Group as
at 31 March 2015.

35. HAEE(H)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & 2201543431 H IFF/E

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
acquired a motor vehicle at cost of HK$300,998 which
was financed by a finance lease arrangement as set out
in note 26 to the financial statements and trade-in a
motor vehicle with carrying value of HK$1.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

a) On 11 May 2015, the board of directors of the
Company announced that the Company has on 10
May 2015 entered into a memorandum of
understanding with All Profit Alliance Limited (“All
Profit”), an independent third party in relation to a
proposed business cooperation in jointly (i)
developing a mobile application, namely, “Yes
Master!”, which aims to provide one-stop household
support to its users to gain access to a number of
value-added services surrounding their households,
in the areas of market place, social networking,
resident bulletin and community services; and (ii)
setting up a two-way communication internet
platform among the property management
companies, incorporated owners, service providers
and its users in any building or property estates in
Hong Kong.

On 21 June 2015, the Company, All Profit and
Capital Creation (BVI) Limited (“Capital Creation”),
as the shareholder of All Profit after the reorganisation
including (i) transfer of one share of All Profit from
the sole shareholder to Capital Creation; and (ii)
the issue and allotment of 89 new shares of All
Profit to Capital Creation at par (the “Reorganisation”),
entered into a subscription and shareholders’
agreement (the “Subscription and Shareholders’
Agreement”), pursuant to which All Profit has agreed
to issue, and the Company has agreed to subscribe
for 10 new shares of All Profit at an aggregated
subscription price of HK$13 million (the “Subscription
Shares”), representing 10% of the issued share
capital of All Profit as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of Subscription Shares (the “Share
Subscription”).

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBENXER (BR)BRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z201543H31H IFF/Z

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

The completion of the Share Subscription is subject
to the fulfillment of the conditions as set out in the
Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement including
(i) the Reorganisation has been completed; and (ii)
the Company completed and is satisfied with the
results of the due diligence review on the business
of All Profit.

As of the approval date on the financial statements
of the Company, the Share Subscription is under
progress and not yet concluded. Details of above
are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 May 2015 and 22 June 2015 respectively.

On 9 June 2015, the Company and an independent
third party Madam Lau, Anna Siu Fun (the
“Subscriber”), entered into a subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”), under which the
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for zero-coupon convertible notes (“CNs”) to be
issued by the Company at principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 (the “Subscription”).

The CNs have maturity after 3 months from the
date of issue, the Subscriber will be entitled to
convert the whole or part of the principal amount
of the CNs during the conversion period into shares
of the Company in amounts of not less than a whole
multiple of HK$1,000,000 on each conversion at
conversion price of HK$1.32 per each share of the
Company. Within seven business days immediately
before the maturity of the CNs, the Company shall
be entitled to request the Subscriber to mandatorily
convert the entire outstanding principal amount of
the CNs into shares of the Company.

The Subscription was completed on 19 June 2015
following approval has been obtained from the Stock
Exchange. Details of above are disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 9 June 2015 and
19 June 2015 respectively.

38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2015.

38.
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RS YA

Year ended/As at 31 March
M3A318 EZE3A3BLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012
2015 20145 2013%F 2012%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TFTEx  FER

OPERATING RESULT
Revenue
Cost of services

Gross profit

Other revenue

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operation

Release of translation reserve to profit
or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEYXEERE(ZER)ERAF

REXRA
Was
AR5 B A

EF

Hp e
TR
Hig&x
BERK A
BR A 7
FIgH R
FRENFE

Hit2E s

BERINEEZENER

R E — M B D B AR

BHEEREES

FAEMEE R (FRR

BE)

ARRAERAREFARRT
EERZEREZAE

EERERE
BEE
BRER

=5

EERE

ADTHEEARERES

339,722 324,981 284,063 276,655
(269,280) (258,781) (231,764) (230,199)

70,442 66,200 52,299 46,456

349 279 - 6,283
(44,122) (37,980) (30,422) (28,245)
(18,717) (19,775) (13,084)  (7,495)

(658) (1,105) (1,559) (1,264)

1,294 7,619 7,234 15,735

(2,320) (2,591) (1,664) (1,794)

4,974 5,028 5570 13,941

- - - 194

- - - (1,493)

- - - (1,299)

4,974 5,028 5570 12,642

100,563 115994 105,023 92,483
(61,276) (62,427) (84,572) (74,032)

39,287 53,567 20,451 18,451

39,287 53,567 20,451 18,451
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